
  www.greenwoodmn.com

  

  

 
 

 
AGENDA 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, May 2, 2012 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
Welcome! The public is invited to address the council regarding any agenda item. If your topic is not on the agenda,  
you may speak during Matters from the Floor. Agenda times are approximate.  

 

7:00 PM 1.   CALL TO ORDER ~ ROLL CALL ~ APPROVE AGENDA 
 

7:00 PM 2.   CONSENT AGENDA 
Council members may remove consent agenda items for discussion. Removed items will be put under Other Business. 
 

A. Approve: 04-04-12 City Council Minutes 
B. Approve: 04-04-12 City Council Worksession Minutes 
C. Approve: 04-10-12 Greenwood-Excelsior Joint Worksession Minutes 
D. Approve: 04-12-12 Board of Appeal and Equalization Minutes 
E. Approve: 04-12-12 Special Meeting Minutes 
F. Approve: March Cash Summary Report 
G. Approve: April Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
H. Approve: May Payroll Register 
I. Approve: 2nd Reading, Ord. 209, Amending Code Section 1140.85, Subd. 2, Diseased Trees 
J. Approve: Public Access Procedures, Code Section 125 (done annually) 
K. Approve: Excelsior Park & Dock Police Services Proposal (done annually) 

 

7:05 PM 3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. The council will not 
engage in discussion or take action on items presented at this time. However, the council may ask for clarification and 
may include items on a future agenda. Comments are limited to three minutes.  

 

7:10 PM 4.   ANNOUNCEMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, AND GUESTS 
A. City Engineer Dave Martini:  

(a)  Policy Regarding City Streets Located on Private Property 
(b)  2012 Road Project Recommendations and Rough Estimates 

B. Lieutenant David Pierson and Community Service Supervisor David Hohertz: Quarterly 
Police Report 

C. Announcement: City Council / Planning Commission Worksession, Following 5/16 Planning 
Commission Meeting (approximately 8 PM) 

     

8:00 PM 5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. None 

 

8:00 PM 6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Discuss: Potential Excelsior Blvd. Water Project 

 

8:15 PM 7.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consider: Variance Requests, Keith and Stacy Carlson, 20965 Channel Drive 
B. Discuss: Potential Support of Xcel Energy Alternate Route 
C. Discuss: Potential Review of Hardcover and Setback Requirements for Lots Smaller than 

15,000 sq. ft. 
D. Discuss: Potential Clean Up of St. Alban’s Bay Shoreline Along Minnetonka Blvd.  
E. 1st Reading: Ordinance 209, Amending Code Section 310.30, Subd. 5(d) and (f), Use of 

Sewers (authorizing the council to institute programs to ensure compliance with ordinances 
that prohibit discharge of clean water into the sanitary sewer system) 

 

9:00 PM 8.   OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None 

 

9:00 PM 9.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Fletcher: Planning Commission, Lake Mtka. Comm. Commission 
B. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayor Meetings, Website 
C. Page: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewer, Minnetonka Community Education 
E. Rose: Excelsior Fire District 

 

9:15 PM 10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda typically includes the most recent council minutes, cash summary report, verifieds report, 
electronic fund transfers, and check registers. The consent agenda also may include the 2nd reading of ordinances that 
were approved unanimously by the council at the 1st reading. Council members may remove consent agenda items for 
further discussion. Removed items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

  

  

 
 
 
 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Worksession 
 

6 PM, Wednesday, April 4, 2012 
Council Chambers, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER ~ ROLL CALL ~ APPROVE AGENDA 

 

Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 6 PM. 
 

Members present: Mayor Kind, Councilmembers Fletcher, Page, Quam, and Rose 
Others present: Assessors Melissa Potter and Robert Winge 
 

Quam moved to approve the agenda. Second by Fletcher. Motion carried 5-0.  
 
2. PRE-BOARD WORKSESSION WITH ASSESSORS 

  

Assessor Melissa Potter guided the council through the 2012 Assessment booklet provided to the council. 
Each year estimated market values (EMV) are analyzed along with sales data from the market. Adjustments, 
as appropriate for each property, are made. Each year one fifth of the properties in the city are reviewed and 
the records are updated. This year the east side of St. Alban’s Bay was reviewed. The results of the 
adjustments for the 2012 assessment are as follows:  
 

Residential -3.2% 
Residential Lakeshore -2.9% 
Condos +3.3% 
Commercial/Industrial -0.8% 
 

There are 351 taxable parcels in the city with a total market value of approximately $276,069,600. This is 
down $7,231,000. The overall value decrease for all property types in the city is -2.3%.  
 

The city council and assessors discussed the assessment results and concerns including: 
• There were 6 sales in the study to justify a .10% increase for Greenwood’s lakeshore properties, but the 

assessors considered other factors and determined a -2.9% decrease instead. 
• Most of the current sales listings are well below the 2012 EMVs, which seems to indicate that the 2012 

assessment change should have included a bigger reduction. 
• Some neighborhoods received adjustments, while others received minimal or no adjustments because 

there were no sales in those areas to support a change. There is concern that the “neighborhoods” are too 
small and may never experience change if there are no sales, or experience too much change if there is 
one sale. 

• Greenwood’s 2012 lakeshore assessment change is -2.9% compared -5.0% avg. for South Lake 
Minnetonka cities. 

• The historic 1999-2012 Lake Minnetonka cities’ lakeshore assessment change is 5.0% for Greenwood 
(highest historic change) compared to Woodland at 1.5% (lowest historic change). 

 

The city council acting as the local board of appeal and equalization will hear appeals of residential EMVs on 
Thursday, April 12, 2012 at 6 PM. Any changes must be justified because they have the effect of shifting the 
tax burden to other properties in the city. The local board may not make an adjustment if the property owner 
refuses entry to the assessor. At least one local board member must complete training before the 2013 local 
board meeting to be in compliance with the requirement that one member has attended training in the 
previous 4 years.  

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Quam moved to adjourn at 6:50 PM. Second by Rose. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

Respectfully submitted by Deb Kind 
 



GREENWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Wednesday, April 4, 2012, 7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL – APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Fletcher, Page, Quam and Rose 
 
Others Present: None 
 
Also Present: City Tree Inspector Jordan and City Engineer Martini 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked that Item 7.B be discussed after Item 4.A.  
 
Fletcher moved, Quam seconded, approving the agenda as amended. Motion passed 5/0. 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 
Mayor Kind reviewed the items on the Consent Agenda.  
 
Page moved, Quam seconded, approving the items contained on the Consent Agenda.   
 

A. March 7, 2012, City Council Meeting Minutes  
 

B. March 7, 2012, City Council Work Session Minutes  
 

C. February 2012 Cash Summary Report  
  

D. March 2012 Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
 

E. April 2012 Payroll Register  
 

Motion passed 5/0.  
 
3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR  
    
There were no matters from the floor presented this evening.  
 
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS, PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS 
 

A. City Tree Inspector Manuel Jordan: City’s Policy Regarding Tree Diseases & Insect 
Threats 

  
Mayor Kind stated that the Council had a worksession with City Tree Inspector Jordan in March. At that 
worksession Jordan asked the council to set a policy regarding tree diseases and insect threats. She 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 2 of 16 
  
reviewed the options for Council’s consideration this evening. They include: 1) tag affected trees for 
removal in response to complaints only; 2) tag affected trees for removal in response to complaints, and 
also tag any affected trees observed by the tree inspector while in the City; and, 3) tag affected trees for 
removal in response to complaints, tag any affected trees observed by the tree inspector while in the City, 
and establish a tree inventory program with ongoing maintenance surveys of public and private disease 
centers. She noted that Tree Inspector Jordan is present this evening.  
 
Inspector Jordan suggested another option could be to canvass for disease centers and eliminate the 
inventory portion of third option. The inventory aspect would be very time consuming and expensive to 
do. The canvassing could be done multiple times during a year if desired. Councilmember Fletcher asked 
if Jordan had a guesstimate of what it would cost to canvass the City. Jordan stated the City isn’t very 
large, and he noted the canvassing would be somewhat limited because many of the trees in the City are 
very high and it is difficult to see the top. Jordan clarified the trees canvassed would mainly be those 
along roadways. The canvassing would be done from inside of a car and each time a survey is done it 
should not take more than a day at a $50 per hour rate. Jordan commented that an intern could possibly be 
hired to do that at a lower hourly rate.  
 
Inspector Jordan suggested Council decide if it wants the City to be proactive or reactive.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated he thought the City should approach this proactively.  
 
Mayor Kind stated at a minimum she would like to have option 2 as a policy.  
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Fletcher, Inspector Jordan stated the best time to conduct 
a canvassing would be in August.  
 
Councilmember Page suggested establishing option 2 as the policy now and consider the modified option 
3 (the canvassing option by the Tree Inspector) at a future date.  
 
Page moved, Rose seconded, approving Option 2 as the City’s policy regarding tree diseases and 
insect threats and to evaluate if the policy should be expanded at a future date.  Motion passed 5/0. 
 
Discussion moved to Item 7.B on the agenda.  
 

B. City Engineer Dave Martini and Greenwood Resident “Expert” Bill Cook – Inflow 
& Infiltration Project and Potential Sump Pump Program 

 
Mayor Kind explained that during its February 1, 2012, and March 7, 2012, meetings Council discussed 
the possibility of conducting a new sump pump program and whether or not the City’s Inflow & 
Infiltration (I&I) projects have reduced the amount of stormwater that flows into the sewer system. 
Council decided to continue the discussion about the I&I projects to this meeting so that the Engineer 
Martini and resident expert Bill Cook could be present. Mayor Kind noted that Bill Cook is the director of 
engineering services for the Met Council. 
 
Councilmember Page asked Engineer Martini to comment on the I&I projects. Martini stated the City is 
close to finishing all of the I&I improvement projects it had identified.  
 
Engineer Martini explained that in 2011 the City bid out a project to make improvements to the City’s 
sanitary sewer system. The City received bids that were substantially higher than the project estimate. So 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 3 of 16 
  
the approximately $70,000 was cut from the project. It’s possible the pricing for the remaining work 
could be less this year.  
 
Councilmember Quam asked Engineer Martini what he thought the urgency of the repairs is. Martini 
stated nothing has been identified that indicates there could be a backup in the system if the repairs aren’t 
done this year. Martini then stated that anything that can be done to eliminate the flow of stormwater into 
the sewer system is a benefit. Quam stated there is always a possibility that additional grant funds will 
become available in a year or two and that could help offset the cost of doing the remaining repairs.  
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Fletcher, Mr. Cook stated that most of the problem 
municipalities have with I&I is on private property. That is statistically the case throughout the country. 
That is especially true when a municipality has cleaned out its sewers, repaired manholes and so forth. 
Mr. Cook then stated periodically a municipality may inadvertently drain stormwater into the sewer 
system. Engineer Martini noted that when the sewer system was televised there was no indication of an 
inappropriate City connection.  
 
Mayor Kind asked Engineer Martini and Mr. Cook if they thought the I&I projects have helped to reduce 
the flow of stormwater into the sewer system based on the Met Council’s allocated wastewater volumes 
document for 2005-2012. She noted the meeting packet contains a copy of that information. She stated 
she interprets the data to mean the City’s storm sewer system is not tight. Martini stated the regional flow 
indicates the City has less variability.  
 
Mr. Cook explained the Met Council has been noticing a few trends. Flows are declining throughout the 
region, especially during dry weather events. Part of that is because new plumbing codes require lower 
flow water fixtures. The Met Council also believes ground water has declined. Ground water impacts 
infiltration.  
 
In response to a comment from Councilmember Fletcher, Mr. Cook stated he estimated that there is an 
additional 250,000 gallons of flow from sump pumps during rain events based on the wastewater data 
provided by the Met Council.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated because the City has in the last three years fixed its manhole covers the 
excess flow is likely to be coming from sump pumps. Mr. Cook stated with a small system the sump 
pump flow can overwhelm the flow information.  
 
Mr. Cook stated the City of Forest Lake removed 200-300 sump pumps from the flow into its sanitary 
sewer system. Its flow went down dramatically. It did that by passing an ordinance and working with the 
public to get the sum pumps disconnected from the sewer system.  
 
Councilmember Quam noted that about five years ago the City notified residents that they had to 
disconnect their sump pumps from the City’s sewer system. The then city council chose not to move 
forward with inspections because it thought they would be too intrusive. He stated the City has no idea 
how many sump pumps are hooked up to the system.  
 
Mr. Cook explained there are two sticking points with sump pump surveys. One of them is doing 
inspections. The other is requiring private property owners to do work on their infrastructure.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she is aware that in some outstate areas residents can connect their sump pump to the 
municipal sewer system and pay a fee to do that. Mr. Cook stated he thought that approach is a way to try 
and encourage residents to disconnect their sump pumps from the system.  



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 4 of 16 
  
 
Kind explained that in 2006 residents had to certify to the City that their sump pumps were not connected 
to the sewer system. It was done on an honor system. She stated they City could do another certification 
programs and charge residents a surcharge until they send in their certification paperwork. 
Councilmember Quam stated that won’t guarantee that the sump pumps aren’t connected.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated the City has made improvements to over 75 percent of its sanitary sewer 
infrastructure in the last few years. He asked if there is any indication that there has been a reduction in 
wastewater flow into the sewer system. Mr. Cook stated Met Council is still waiting for a large rain event 
to assess the impact sewer system repairs in the region have had.  
 
Fletcher then stated it does not seem unreasonable to wait until Met Council can provide wastewater flow 
data from significant rain events before Council makes any decisions about whether or not to move 
forward with the remainder of the I&I improvements. Mr. Cook stated that could be a strategy. He then 
stated he thought what the City will likely find out that the repairs done so far have primarily affected 
infiltration. Fletcher asked if part of the reduction in flow over the last few years could be the results of 
the repairs. Mr. Cook stated it could be, but the peaks are still occurring.  
 
Mr. Cook stated the Met Council is going to be asking cities to do more to reduce excessive flows. 
Similar to what it did a number of years ago.  
 
Engineer Martini suggested Council view the repairs made the last few years as something it will need to 
do on a regular basis.  
 
Councilmember Quam asked Council if it wants to move forward with the remainder of the repairs 
identified or does it want to wait for a while.  
 
Mayor Kind stated it is her understanding that there may not be Met Council grant money available this 
year for improvements. Engineer Martini stated the City was not able to use all of the matching Met 
Council grant funds in 2011 because of the amount of the project cost. The Met Council chose not to 
allow municipalities to use those funds on future projects. Kind stated there is legislation being 
considered to provide grant funds again in 2013.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher suggested holding off with doing the remaining improvements until there may 
be an opportunity to apply for matching grant funds.  
 
Councilmember Page stated the City could send out a letter informing residents they cannot have their 
sump pumps connected to the City’s sewer system for a relatively low cost. Doing that could reduce the 
flow into the system for a much lower cost than doing the remaining repairs. The City would be 
proactive. He then stated there would not be any harm done by asking residents to certify that their sump 
pumps are not connected to the sewer system and charging them and inspecting them if they don’t certify.  
 
Engineer Martini noted there are other things that contribute to excess flow and he suggested they be 
explained to the residents as well.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher again asked Mr. Cook if it makes more sense to wait until data is available after 
a significant rain event before implementing another sump pump certification program.  
 
Mayor Kind stated Councilmember Page’s suggestion makes sense to do now because whether or not the 
I&I projects have been effective, the City does not want residents to have their sump pumps connected to 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 5 of 16 
  
the sewer system. She noted the City Code already has a surcharge fee established, but the Code would 
have to be amended to implement a new sump pump program.  
 
There was Council consensus to have Staff draft an ordinance to update the City Code allow the City to 
send out a certification letter and note that if residents do not certify that they do not have a sump pump 
connected to the City’s sewer system they will be billed a surcharge, and to put this item on Council’s 
May agenda. 
 
Mr. Cook stated he could obtain Met Council flow records for the City from recent past storms and that 
can be compared to the next significant rain event.  
 
There was Council consensus to hold off on the remaining I&I repairs for this year.  
 
Mayor Kind thanked Engineer Martini and Mr. Cook from coming this evening.  
 

C. Dick Osgood: Lake Minnetonka Association Executive Director Dick Osgood:  
Aquatic Invasive Species 

  
Mayor Kind stated Dick Osgood, Lake Minnetonka Association (LMA) Executive Director, is present to 
give a report on the herbicide treatment of Eurasian Watermilfoil (milfoil).   
 
Mr. Osgood noted last week he emailed Staff a report titled Assessment of the Lake Vegetation 
Management Plan Objectives involving five bays in Lake Minnetonka (the Lake).  He stated he assumed 
Council was provided with a copy of the report. He also noted that he provided a one-page summary of 
that report.  
 
Mr. Osgood explained the LMA has been the project manager, along with other partners, for managing 
milfoil in five bays in the Lake. Carman, Gray’s and Phelp’s Bays were the original three bays in the 
project. In 2011 Gideon and St. Alban’s Bays were added to the treatment project. Much of the 
monitoring data for the project is now available for the first four years of the treatment of milfoil.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated that based on the data the LMA believes the demonstration project has been a success. 
It has met all of its objectives. The expanded project includes the treatment of 683 acres of the Lake. That 
acreage is double what the Lake Minnetonka Conservation District’s (LMCD) harvesting program 
manages each year. Native plants and water quality have been protected throughout the project. The 
herbicide products used are safe. The treatment has resulted in substantial public benefit. The Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) has endorsed herbicide treatment of milfoil and has streamlined 
the permit application process to a “short-form.” The protocol the DNR is allowing throughout the State 
is the protocol used for the Lake Minnetonka projects. The demonstration project was and still is intended 
to be a five-year project; 2012 will be the fifth year.  
 
Mr. Osgood then stated the LMA believes it is time for the project to be operational. It believes there is a 
need for a comprehensive lake-wide invasive plant management plan for the Lake and a provision for 
some type of public funding formula. He explained one of the challenges there has been is the uneven 
funding from public versus private sources. Funding has come from a variety of sources. The public part 
of the funding has been variable (e.g., city to city and bay to bay). There would be a great benefit to have 
the public funding sources more reliable.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated the LMA is asking the cities to support this becoming operational.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 6 of 16 
  
Mayor Kind thanked Mr. Osgood for his brief and nicely done report. 
 
Councilmember Quam asked Mr. Osgood to elaborate on what he envisions the plan to be and what it 
may cost.  
 
Mr. Osgood explained in general a management plan should identify the problem, evaluate alternative 
solutions, evaluate the feasible options, recommend fund sources, and identify an implementation 
strategy. For the Lake his answer would be the plan should include the problems for all invasive plants in 
the Lake. Currently there are three known – milfoil, curly leaf pondweed, and flowering rush. The plan 
should identify what problems the invasive plans cause and where they cause them. And, what could or 
should be done to control them. He noted that he did not think it is feasible to talk about eradication. He 
stated he does not know how much it would cost to prepare the plan. To develop it would involve some 
inventory work. The level of assessment will depend on some of the preliminary steps. How the problem 
is defined will help define the rest of the steps. If the problem is defined loosely then the inventory 
doesn’t have to be as precise. If it is defined in very specific terms then the inventory and survey work 
will have to be more precise and costly. He stated because public meetings and public hearings would 
likely be involved it could take 3-6 months. As a consultant he would charge $10,000-$15,000 plus the 
inventory work. He noted because of all of the agencies with experience around the Lake he is not sure it 
would be necessary to hire a consultant.  
 
Mayor Kind asked what the ballpark cost for an inventory would be. Mr. Osgood stated he has heard 
estimates from $30,000-$120,000. He noted the cost depends on the question that is being asked.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated the inventory and plan could be phased. He stated some of the westerly bays in the 
Lake don’t have a lot of invasive vegetation in them.  
 
Mayor Kind noted Mr. Osgood talks specifically about invasive plants. Therefore, zebra mussels are not 
included. She asked if it would be possible to have one comprehensive plan that includes all invasive 
species. Mr. Osgood stated it would be possible but he would not advise that. He noted that generally 
speaking there are no controls for invasive animals at this time.  
 
Mayor Kind stated if St. Alban’s Bay is chemically treated there is no need to harvest the Bay. She asked 
Mr. Osgood if he knows how much it costs to harvest the Bay. Mr. Osgood stated the way the 
comparisons are typically done is on a per acre basis. He explained the cost to harvest is $300-$350 per 
acre for the acres harvested. He thought there had been about 100 acres to harvest in the Bay. He stated it 
is his recollection that the area harvested in the Bay was approximately 20 percent of the area that was 
chemically treated.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she would like the LMCD to recognize there are some savings from not having to 
harvest bays that are chemically treated. Therefore, she would like the LMCD to put that savings toward 
the treatment of St. Alban’s Bay and that she would like to see a comprehensive plan that includes both 
harvesting and chemical treatment.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated the LMA would share Mayor Kind’s sentiment. But, it comes back to what is an 
equitable formula. He explained the harvesting program is mostly fixed costs.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated if the LMCD isn’t harvesting in St. Alban’s Bay it will likely be 
harvesting in some other bay. There would not be any cash savings.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 7 of 16 
  
Councilmember Page stated that in 2011 everything wasn’t spent in the harvesting budget. The invasive 
plants didn’t grow as much because of the high water. The cost to harvest varies from year to year. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked what the LMCD’s total budget is for 2012. Councilmember Page stated he 
didn’t know. Mr. Osgood stated the harvesting portion of the budget is approximately $95,000-$105,000 
annually.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she would like to have the current LMCD resources reallocated to support some 
funding of chemical treatment.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated it is in the LMA’s interest and its members’ interest to continue the chemical treatment 
program. He again noted the treatment program has treated more than double the acreage than has been 
harvested on average. Presumably the need for harvesting should go down. He explained the bays 
selected for treatment were selected because they had the greatest milfoil problem. Presumably by taking 
those out of the harvesting program there should be less acreage to harvest. That is unless the milfoil 
problem is much greater than the treatment and harvesting areas combined. The current estimate is there 
is between 3,000 and 5,000 acres of milfoil in the Lake, but no one knows for sure. The combined treated 
and harvested acreage is about 1,000 or one-fifth of the total milfoil acreage. He noted that he doesn’t 
know if the other up to 4,000 acres are problem areas that need treatment.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated the document in the packet for this item indicated that Mr. Osgood would 
like Council to direct the City’s representative to the LMCD to support the development of a 
comprehensive aquatic-invasive species management plan for the Lake to evaluate the overall invasive 
species problems; to evaluate feasible, cost-effective management and control alternatives; to develop a 
comprehensive funding formula involving public and private funds; and, to implement a coordinated 
management program.  
 
Councilmember Page stated the LMCD AIS Task Force does not share the rosy picture painted by Mr. 
Osgood of what has and has not been successful. The treatment model that was originally prepared was to 
have a more aggressive treatment followed by continuing less aggressive treatments until milfoil was at a 
very low, stable level and only low-cost treatments, if any, would be required. The activity to date has 
shown that to be a failure. That is the position of the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District (MCWD), the 
DNR and various other parties involved. It can only be classified a success if expectations are adjusted. 
He clarified he is not saying it has not worked well in the treated areas, but only that when compared to 
the original plan it has not been a success. He explained the current understanding is there would be a 
need for a very heavy treatment in year one, a lesser treatment in year two, and then most likely a heavy 
treatment in year three. That would bring the cost up when compared to what the original model 
projected. The cost would probably be double.    
 
Page then stated when the idea of the LMCD developing a plan at a cost of $70,000 and when the idea of 
public funding is discussed just for what is currently being chemically treated that would likely max out 
the LMCD’s ability to levy. The LMCD has approximately $150,000 to $200,000 that it does not levy 
each year, noting that it could if it decided to. It doesn’t levy that much more because the LMCD member 
cities don’t want it to.  
 
Mayor Kind stated there could potentially be a matching funds approach taken.  
 
Councilmember Page stated the LMCD agreed to contribute up to $10,000 per bay each year of the five-
year demonstration project for the three bays. He then stated when he participates in LMCD AIS Task 
Force meetings he doesn’t hear an overwhelming need expressed for a lake-wide management plan. He 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 8 of 16 
  
also doesn’t hear the DNR say that a lake-wide comprehensive plan is necessary. The DNR believes that 
those who want to chemically treat milfoil will use the short form to obtain authorization to do so and 
then pay for the treatment. He noted the DNR is not going to fund a comprehensive plan and 
implementation, and the MCWD has no interest in funding it either.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she only hopes to get partial public funding for the treatment of St. Alban’s Bay.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated he would frame the success or lack of success differently than Councilmember Page 
did. He noted that he agreed that the original financial expectations fell apart. That was known the first 
year. He explained the original model was based on bench tests and it didn’t work. The model was 
tweaked and now is successful when compared to the management objectives. He noted it is more costly 
than originally anticipated. He stated from his vantage point it is premature to judge that the increased 
cost is onerous. He then stated he agreed that the current model is to treat a bay heavy in year one, then 
have a one to two year reprieve, and then treat it heavily again. He went on to state there is enough good 
information now to develop plans and expectations. He noted it is unclear whether or not the DNR will 
pay for the management of the plan; it has just come out with new rules for its grant program for partial 
funding of treatments.  
 
Mr. Osgood explained the difference between the harvesting program and the treatment program is 
funding as well. Harvesting is paid for solely through the LMCD from levy money and grant money. The 
funding formula for the chemical treatment has evolved. He would not have designed it the way it is in 
hindsight. It has evolved out of necessity. He then stated the LMA would like to make the chemical 
treatment program operational and that there is a significant public benefit to it. Therefore, there should 
be public financial participation on some formula basis. He clarified that no matter what funding formula 
is agreed to he still believes there will a private element to funding. He stated he did not think the average 
of 60 percent private funding participation is sustainable. Nor does he believe it is totally equitable.  
 
Councilmember Page stated harvesting will continue in conjunction with chemical treatment. Per the 
Army Corps there is no one program in general that will work on a lake the size of the Lake. He then 
stated he believes that chemical treatment works best on a closed bay with limited inflow or outflow. It 
does not work very effectively in larger, open bodies of water or in bays with an open mouth to a larger 
body of water. Mayor Kind noted that it worked relatively well in Gideon Bay. Page indicated the Army 
Corps was not overly impressed with the results of the treatment of Gideon Bay. He stated there is 
discussion occurring about whether or not to harvest milfoil around Big Island. He then stated there will 
be a balance between treatment and harvesting and the bottom line comes down to how much money 
there is to spend on the combined efforts.  
 
Page then stated that the way he interprets the LMA’s request is that it wants the City to send a message 
that it wants and is willing to live with a very substantial increase in the LMCD’s budget in order to pay 
for more chemical treatment of milfoil and a management plan. If Council wants to do that he noted he 
will bring the message back to the LMCD that the City wants to have the levy increased in order to pay 
for chemical treatment of St. Alban’s Bay and other areas of the Lake.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated he personally along with the LMA is frustrated by the use of the words substantial 
increase because no one has any idea about what the cost is at this time.  
 
Councilmember Page stated that is the problem. The LMA calls for public funding without there being 
any idea of what amount of funding is needed. He then stated the LMCD newsletter indicates $507,000 
was spent on the treatment of the original three bays over the four year period. That includes not treating 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 9 of 16 
  
the equivalent of one bay because treatment of Gray’s Bay was skipped on year and it was skipped in 
Carman’s Bay another year.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated that number is misleading. He asked why the numbers for 2008 would be included 
when both he and Councilmember Page agree that was a failure. It was a demonstration project and 
people understood that it was a project to learn from. He stated when you project into the future you don’t 
project based on a project’s failures. He explained the 2008 treatment which used the Army Corps 
protocol did not work. It makes no sense to include that in the formula for projecting into the future. 
There is proven information to now. That information can be part of a management plan and used to help 
project the costs of treatment and efficacy. Once the treatment costs are estimated then discussion can 
begin about how to equitably fund it. Until the management plan is developed it is difficult to estimate a 
cost. He stated that as a consultant he always talks about management in the concept of a plan. He noted 
he does not think it is responsible just to say something will not work or it will cost too much. The cost 
figures discussed have not been looked at with a critical eye, but they should be. The information is 
available to do that.  
 
In response to a comment from Councilmember Quam, Mr. Osgood stated the LMA is requesting the 
LMCD initiate that effort. Mr. Osgood noted the LMA will help develop the plan and there are other 
agencies with expertise that he believes should help also.  
 
Councilmember Page stated enough chemicals were not used in 2008. Therefore, the cost would have 
been higher. From his perspective the $507,000 should be increased to provide a more realistic cost. He 
noted that Mr. Osgood is also a member of the AIS Task Force, and therefore he should know why the 
Task Force has not suggested developing a new management plan. He stated no one on the Task Force, 
other than the LMA, is convinced it is necessary to develop a plan at this point in time and they are not 
proponents of that expenditure. He explained various members of the LMCD Board attend the Task Force 
meetings as do representatives from the DNR, the Three Rivers Park District, and the fishing lobby. He 
noted that other than milfoil's impact on navigation the fishing lobby likes having milfoil in the Lake. He 
stated there is no consensus that a management plan is necessary at this time. The intent is to wait until 
year five (2012) of the demonstration project is completed and then analyze the costs and the efficacy. He 
then stated that everyone understands that harvesting is going to continue and some level of chemical 
treatment is going to continue in the areas where it works.  
 
Councilmember Quam asked where the money for treatment will come from. Councilmember Page 
responded it will likely come from the existing sources. Mayor Kind stated she hopes the LMCD will be 
one of those sources. Page indicated he hopes the MCWD will start to contribute to the effort.  
 
Councilmember Page stated last September he thought Mr. Osgood had thought the MCWD would 
develop a comprehensive invasive species management plan for the entire area within the MCWD which 
includes the Lake.  
 
Mayor Kind stated that earlier this evening she forwarded an email stating there is consensus for the 
MCWD to move forward with AIS management efforts. The MCWD Board of Managers has started the 
process to formalize an approach. The MCWD has hired an AIS program director.  
 
Councilmember Page stated that it is his understanding that plan will not be ready for a couple of years. 
Mr. Osgood indicated at least a couple of years. Page stated it is his understanding that for the next few 
years the MCWD has no intention of contributing anything to the effort. Mr. Osgood stated that is his 
understanding also. He stated that prior to his coming before Council last September he was told that the 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 10 of 16 
 
MCWD has no intention of doing this kind of work. Page indicated that is disappointing to hear, and he 
questioned what the City’s $53,000 contribution to the MCWD is for.  
 
Mayor Kind stated the City contributes $6,260 to the LMCD. Mayor Kind reiterated she would like to see 
the resources reallocated.  
 
Councilmember Page commented that he and Mr. Osgood debate the need for a management plan on a 
regular basis. He stated they both want the invasive species to be controlled.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated based on how he interprets Councilmember Page’s comments the LMCD will continue 
to fund harvesting, whatever that means, and the chemical treatment is somewhat of a forgotten effort. It 
sounds as if the harvesting will preempt any other consideration. He expressed that he agrees there needs 
to be a balance between chemical treatment and harvesting, but there is no indication of what that balance 
should be. He also agrees that treatment works better in some bays than others. That can be the essence of 
a plan now with minimal effort. He explained that harvesting addresses mainly navigation. Page stated 
that really means homeowners can get out from their docks and that areas around shore will be dealt with 
so the usable area of the Lake doesn’t continue to shrink.  
 
Mr. Osgood stated the AIS Task Force has never talked about what navigable means in the context of 
harvesting or what the objective of harvesting is. He suggested having that conversation. He then stated, 
for example, to exclude St. Alban’s Bay from harvesting and include it in chemical treatment will be 
considered differently than if it were the other way around. That warrants a discussion. The LMA’s 
interest is to formalize a combination plan approach for managing milfoil.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she would support having the LMCD sending some amount of contribution to the 
chemical treatment of bays where people want that to occur. She commented that treating a bay does 
provide some contribution to the entire Lake.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked who should be the lead agency for the management of AIS in the Lake. 
Councilmember Page stated the LMCD has always served in that capacity and still does. Fletcher asked 
Page, as the City’s representative on the LMCD Board, what would be wrong with asking the LMCD as 
the lead agency to develop a milfoil and other invasive plant control program, including feasible costs and 
implementation methods. He noted that he did not include comprehensive in that statement. He then 
asked Page if he would do that as the City’s representative. Page explained as long as Council 
understands that if that is a $70,000 effort the levy will have to be increased. Mayor Kind stated what is 
being asked for is for the LMCD to develop a basic, not comprehensive, plan. Kind then stated a plan for 
where harvesting will be done, where chemical treatment will be done, and how much funding the LMCD 
will contribute toward the chemical treatment of St. Alban’s Bay or any other bay for treatment.  
 
Councilmember Page asked if a less than lake-wide plan is being asked for. Councilmember Fletcher 
explained he would love to have a comprehensive, lake-wide plan but he is realistic about the cost of 
doing that. Fletcher then stated there should be a push for a basic plan. Mayor Kind stated some of the 
LMCD’s funding should go to chemical treatment; not just toward harvesting.  
 
Councilmember Quam asked Councilmember Page if the LMCD could develop a plan on a per bay basis, 
or even just for the bays that have been chemically treated. Page stated the LMCD’s attitude is everything 
has to be even. There is no special treatment. Page then stated the LMCD considers the harvesting 
program to be most equitable for all bays in the Lake because harvesting in done in each bay.  
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 11 of 16 
 
Mayor Kind stated St. Alban’s Bay was not harvested in 2011 therefore from her vantage point the 
LMCD should contribute to the chemical treatment of the Bay in 2012 as compensation. She noted the 
DNR contributed over $8,000 to the 2011 treatment of the Bay.  
 
Fletcher moved, Quam seconded, directing the City’s representative to the Lake Minnetonka 
Conservation District to encourage the LMCD to develop a milfoil and other invasive plant control 
program including feasible costs and effective implementation methods and to develop appropriate 
funding formulas giving realistic financial frameworks.   
 
Councilmember Quam asked Councilmember Page if he could carry that message forward. Page 
responded absolutely. Page noted that a plan costs money. He encouraged the Council to understand what 
the meaning of this vote is. It could result in a levy increase to cover the cost to develop the plan and then 
implement the plan.  
 
Councilmember Quam stated he assumes Council will be provided the cost to do that and then it can 
decide it doesn’t want to have the LMCD, and ultimately the cities, spend the money. Quam expressed his 
confidence that Councilmember Page can convey what Council desires.  
 
Councilmember Page stated he lobbied for the LMCD to contribute toward the treatment of St. Alban’s 
Bay in 2011 and he was voted down 15 to 1.  
 
Motion passed 3/0/2 with Page and Rose abstaining. 
 

D. St. Alban’s Bay Bridge Work Session with the Excelsior City Council 
  
Mayor Kind noted there is a work session scheduled with the Excelsior City Council on April 10, 2012, at 
7:00 P.M. to discuss the St. Alban’s Bay Bridge. It will be held in this room. 
 
Councilmember Page asked what the purpose of the meeting is. Mayor Kind explained the Excelsior City 
Engineer is going to present information about the historic nature of the Bridge and there will discussion 
about what type of arrangement the two Cities will need to enter in to before any improvements to the 
Bridge are made.  
 

E. Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting Dates 
  
Mayor Kind noted the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization meeting dates are April 12th and April 
26th, only if the second meeting is needed, and the start times are 6:00 P.M. The meetings will be held in 
this room.  
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING   
    

A. None 
 
6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

A. Consider Resolution 04-12 Hennepin County Recycling Program 
 
Mayor Kind stated there is nothing new to discuss about this. This item will be placed on Council’s May 
2, 2012, meeting agenda for consideration. 
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 12 of 16 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider Resolution 06-12 Update of Appointments and Assignments 
 
Mayor Kind stated the meeting packet contains a draft resolution making three changes to the 
appointments and assignments for 2012. The changes are: 1) changing the name of the auditor from 
LarsonAllen to CliftonLarsonAllen; 2) updating the list of Planning Commissioners and their terms per 
the appointments made during Council’s March 7, 2012, meeting; and, 3) adding Gus Karpas as the 
Assistant Weed Inspector. She noted State Statute requires the appointment of an assistant weed 
inspector.  
 
Fletcher moved, Rose seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 06-12, “A Resolution Making 
Appointments and Assignments for 2012.”  
 
Mayor Kind noted there is a vacancy on the lake Minnetonka Communications Commission. She 
explained should there be an important vote it may be nice to have a second representative to cast the 
second vote. She stated if no other Councilmember is interested she will be willing to be the second 
representative with the understanding that she will not attend the meetings unless there will be an 
important vote taken.  
 
Without objection from the seconded, the maker amended the motion to appoint Deb Kind as the 
second representative to the Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission. Motion passed 5/0.  
 
Discussion moved to item 7.C on the agenda.  
 

B. First Reading: Ordinance 209, Amending Code Section 1140.85 Subd. 2(4), Diseased 
Trees 

 
This was discussed after Item 4.A on the agenda.  
 
Mayor Kind explained this is the first reading of Ordinance 209, amending Ordinance Code Section 
1140.85 Subd. 2(4), Diseased Trees. She explained that when that Section of Code was reviewed a while 
back it became apparent that Subd. 2(4) does not give the City the authority to require the removal of 
trees affected by various insects (e.g., Emerald Ash Borers and Gypsy Moths) because those types of 
infestations are not diseases. Subd. 2(4) currently states “Any living or standing tree infected by any other 
diseases determined to be harmful by the State of Minnesota.” The proposed amendment states “Any 
living or standing tree affected by any other pathogen determined to be harmful by the State of 
Minnesota.” 
 
Fletcher moved, Quam seconded, adopting the first reading of Ordinance 209 amending Section 
1140.85 Subd. 2(4) Diseased Trees as presented.  
 
Mayor Kind stated there is a name in Subd. 2(1) that is no longer correct. Inspector Jordan stated 
Ceratocystis ulmi is the old name for Dutch Elm disease fungus. Jordan explained that Dutch elm disease 
is now classified as two different diseases with different names. Jordan stated if Council wants to keep the 
name of the disease in the Ordinance he recommends it be changed to the two new names. Kind 
suggested removing the technical names for the disease.  
 
Without objection from the seconded, Fletcher amended his motion to include amending Subd. 2(1) 
to state “Any living or standing elm tree or part thereof infected to any degree with Dutch elm 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 13 of 16 
 
disease fungus, or which harbors any of the elm bark beetles.” and amending Subd. 2(3) to state 
“Any living or standing oak tree or part thereof infected to any degree with oak wilt.” Motion 
passed 5/0. 
 
Discussion returned to Item 4.B on the agenda. 
 

C. Potential Letter of Support for Inflow & Infiltration Project Grants 
 
This was discussed after Item 7.A on the Agenda.  
 
Mayor Kind stated the meeting packet contains a copy of an email City received from Metro Cities 
Government Relations Specialist Charlie Vander Aarde. She explained that according to the Metro Cities’ 
website, its “primary objective is to be an effective voice for metropolitan cities at the State Legislature 
and Metropolitan Council, so as is to influence state legislation affecting metro area cities, and regional 
policies that accommodate the needs of metro area cities. Metro Cities lobbies on a wide range of 
policies, over 60 in all, including transportation, local government aids and credits, wastewater, 
redevelopment and housing. Legislative policies are developed each year by consensus of our 
membership.” She noted that Metro Cities works closely with the League of Minnesota Cities and that the 
City of Greenwood is a member of the League of Minnesota Cities.  
 
Kind explained that Mr. Vander Aarde is seeking support for Metro Cities’ $8 million bonding request for 
inflow and infiltration (I&I) mitigation on local public sewer infrastructure. The Senate bill is SF1862 
(sponsored by Senator Gen Olson) and the House bill is HF2286 (sponsored by Representative Loon). A 
copy of both bills is included in the meeting packet. Any bonding dollars secured this year would be 
available to cities through a grant process administered by the Metropolitan Council as was done with 
money received in 2010. The City received some of this grant money for I&I projects in 2011. 
 
Councilmember Quam questioned why Council would not support it if there is a possibility the City could 
get some grant money. Mayor Kind stated because it is for $8 million and the City would only get a very 
small portion of it. Kind then stated she is on the fence on this.  
 
Councilmember Fletcher stated that although he doesn’t like these types of things he can support it 
because Senator Gen Olson, who represents the City, is a sponsor of the Senate bill.  
 
Councilmember Rose stated he is against this.  
 
Councilmember Page stated he supports this because the State and Metropolitan Council are forcing cities 
to make I&I improvements to their sanitary sewer systems. It would be nice to have them help pay for the 
improvements.  
 
Fletcher moved,  Quam  seconded, authorizing Mayor Kind to send a letter expressing support for 
Senate bill SF1862 and House bill HF2286 to Senator Dave Senjem (Bonding Chair and Majority 
Leader), Senator John Pederson (Bonding Vice-Chair), Senator Gen Olson (bill author and SD33), 
Representative Larry Howes (Bonding Chair), Representative Jenifer Loon (bill author), and 
Representative Connie Doepke (33B). Motion passed 4/1 with Rose dissenting.  
 

D. Auditor Services for 2013 - 2015 
 
Mayor Kind explained the meeting packet contains a copy of an email the City received from 
CliftonLarsonAllen partner Jen Foley regarding a proposed 1 percent annual increase in the auditing 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 14 of 16 
 
service fees for the next three years. The fee amounts would be: $9390 for the 2012 audit to be completed 
in 2013; $9480 for the 2013 audit to be completed in 2014; and, $9570 for the 2014 audit to be completed 
in 2015. The fee for a half day meeting with Brady Hoffman in November of each year is $740.   
 
Kind then explained that Council put out a request for proposals (RFPs) for auditing services for 2009-
2011. At that time the City chose to switch to LarsonAllen; the lowest bidder by far. The Administrative 
Committee (Kind and Fletcher) recommends Council continue to work with CliftonLarsonAllen through 
2015.  
 
Page moved, Rose seconded, approving the following costs for auditing services from 
CliftonLarsonAllen through 2015: $9390 for the 2012 audit to be completed in 2013; $9480 for the 
2013 audit to be completed in 2014; and, $9570 for the 2014 audit to be completed in 2015. And, 
approving a fee of $740 each year for a half day meeting with Brady Hoffman in November. Motion 
passed 5/0. 
 

E. Potential Extension of City Docks 
 
Councilmember Page stated there was quite a bit of discussion at the last Lake Minnetonka Conservation 
District (LMCD) Board meeting about the possibility of declaring a low water emergency for Lake 
Minnetonka (the Lake). That can be declared when the Lake level falls below 928 feet. Prior to the 
meeting the level had fallen to just below 928 feet. By the time of the meeting it had risen to just above 
928 feet. The Board concluded that the water level has to be below 928 feet before it can declare the low 
water emergency. The Board decided to wait until April 11 to make a decision. He suggested the City 
should wait until after the Board meeting to decide if the City should submit a request for a temporary 
low water variance to extend the City’s docks.  
 
Mayor Kind stated she had spoken with Tim Laturner from Dock & Lift, Inc. (the City’s dock contractor) 
and he indicated he could extend the docks if the City wants. The cost for the extension would be $1485 
to $1980 (3 to 4 sections at a cost of $495 per section). The sections would not be floating dock sections.  
 
Councilmember Page stated the LMCD is concerned about the impact on the usable surface area of Lake 
if property owners extended their docks out farther. The LMCD also has concerns about enforcing dock 
length regulations after the temporary extensions expire.  
 
Mayor Kind asked if Council wants to call a special meeting to address this or if it wants to pass a motion 
in the event that the LMCD declares a low water emergency.  
 
Councilmember Page stated he was not convinced that the docks would have to be extended out 32 feet.  
 
Mayor Kind stated if the LMCD declares a low water emergency on April 11 it would be nice if the City 
could submit its request right away.  
 
Councilmember Page suggested scheduling a special meeting after the Local Board of Appeal and 
Equalization work session on April 12 to address this item.  
 
There was consensus to schedule a special meeting for immediately following the Local Board of Appeal 
and Equalization work session on April 12.  
 

F. Potential Excelsior Boulevard Water Project 
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 15 of 16 
 
Councilmember Fletcher suggested skipping this item due to the time. He stated he will report on this 
during Council’s next meeting.  
 
8. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. None  
 
9. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Fletcher: Planning Commission, Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission,  
Excel PRT Tree Project  

 
With regard to the Planning Commission, Councilmember Fletcher stated the Planning Commission did 
not meet in March.  
 
With regard to the Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission (LMCC) activities, Fletcher stated 
there is nothing significant to report.  
 
With regard to the Xcel Energy LRT Project, Fletcher stated there is nothing significant to report.  
 

B. Kind: Police,  Administration, Freshwater Society Mayor Meetings, Website 
 
With regard to the South Lake Minnetonka Police Department, Mayor Kind stated the SLMPD 
Coordinating Committee held a special meeting on March 16, 2012. The purpose of the meeting was to 
approve the 2012-2013 labor agreement and 2012 salary increases. She noted that she sent a letter on 
behalf of Council to the SLMPD thanking the SLMPD for its good work in resolving the attempted and 
actual burglaries in January.  
 
With regard to administration, Kind stated the meeting packet contains copies of letters she wrote to 
Hennepin County Commissioner Jan Callison and County Assessor Jim Atchison.  
 
With regard to mayors meetings, Kind noted she attended a mayors meeting hosted by the Minnetonka 
School District last month.  
 

C. Page: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
 
Councilmember Page stated the debate that occurred earlier on the agenda about aquatic invasive species 
(AIS) management and the need for a master plan and funding has been ongoing at the Lake Minnetonka 
Conservation District (LMCD) AIS Task Force meeting.  
 

D. Quam: Roads & Sewer, Minnetonka Community Education 
       
Councilmember Quam stated earlier in the meeting Council discussed the City’s sanitary sewer system. 
He noted the City’s roadways will be inspected before the next Council meeting. During the May meeting 
recommendations for roadway repairs in 2012 will be presented.  
 

E. Rose: Excelsior Fire District 
 



City of Greenwood 
Regular City Council Meeting 
April 4, 2012  Page 16 of 16 
 
Councilmember Rose stated there was an Excelsior Fire District (EFD) Board meeting on March 28, 
2012. The replacement tanker truck bids were discussed. The first 2013 budget work session is scheduled 
for April 18 at 6:00 P.M.  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Fletcher moved, Rose seconded, Adjourning the City Council Regular Meeting of April 4, 2012, at 
9:00 P.M.  Motion passed 5/0. 
 
RESPECFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Christine Freeman, Recorder 



 
Greenwood City Council  

Excelsior-Greenwood Joint Worksession Minutes 
 

7:00 pm, Tuesday, April 10, 2012 
Council Chambers ~ 20225 Cottagewood Avenue ~ Deephaven, MN 55331 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Approval Agenda 

 
Greenwood Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. 
 
Greenwood Councilmembers Present: Mayor Deb Kind, Tom Fletcher, Kelsey Page (7:22), Bob 
Quam, and Biff Rose 
 
Excelsior Councilmembers Present: Mayor Nick Ruehl, Greg Miller (7:12), and John Olson 
 
Others Present: Excelsior City Administrator Kristi Luger, Morgan Dawley and Barritt Lovelace 
of WSB Engineering, Greenwood City Attorney Mark Kelly, and Greenwood City Clerk Gus 
Karpas 
 
Quam moved to approve the agenda. Second by Fletcher. Motion was approved by a majority 
of those present.  

 
2. St. Alban’s Bay Bridge Presentation and Discussion 

 
Mayor Kind introduced Morgan Dawley, WSB Engineering who gave a presentation for the 
members of the joint worksession. 
 
Mr. Dawley explained that the maintenance for the St. Alban’s bridge has been shared jointly by 
the cities of Excelsior and Greenwood since possession of the bridge was turned back to the 
cities by Hennepin County at the same time it turned back Minnetonka Boulevard around 2005. 
 
Mr. Dawley discussed the inspection process conducted by Hennepin County to evaluate the 
functionality and structural soundness of the bridge.  He said the most recent inspection done in 
July 2011 has found the bridge to be functionally obsolete, indicating the bridge elements such 
as the shoulder width and rail heights do not meet the current minimum standards.  He said the 
sufficiency rating of the bridge is at 51.5 on a scale of 0 to 100.  He explained when a bridge is 
rated at below 50; it is categorized as “Structurally Deficient.”  As a way of example, Mr. Dawley 
said the bridge was rated 54.1 in 2009.  He said the current rating does not necessarily require 
an immediate closure nor does it indicate imminent failure.  He said the rating system is used to 
determine funding eligibility for rehabilitation or replacement projects.  He said the current rating 
of the bridge requires a more in-depth inspection process which will provide more information on 
the bridge’s current structural condition.  Joint conversations between the cities began in 2007 
due to the 2005 inspection status of the bridge and a design process was discussed but the 
cities decided to wait until after the 2009 inspection. 
 
Mr. Dawley discussed the historical status of the bridge, noting it was constructed in 1941 as 
part of the Federal Works Progress Administration (WPA) which was part of President 
Roosevelt’s “New Deal” program.  He said the bridge is eligible for the National Register of 
Historical Places according to a study by Mn/DOT.  He said when historical significance is 
identified, additional coordination with Mn/DOT’s Cultural Resource Unit and the State Historic 
Preservation Officer is needed to arrive at a bridge replacement or rehabilitation alternative 
which is not cost prohibitive.  He said typically, rehabilitation projects are more expensive than 
replacement.  He said once a bridge is listed as historic or eligible to be historic it cannot be 
removed from the list. 
 



Mayor Ruehl asked if historic status was based on the age of a bridge and questioned what was 
historically significant about the St. Alban’s bridge.  Mr. Dawley said the status is based on a list 
of aesthetic criteria.  He suspects that since the bridge was constructed using WPA funds the 
government feels there are elements of the bridge that need to be preserved.  Mayor Ruehl 
asked if those criteria were available for review.  Mr. Dawley said they were and it is possible 
that they could be obtained with a little research.  Mr. Lovelace noted that he was not sure there 
was a report done on this specific bridge.  Mayor Ruehl said he needs some justification for 
spending additional dollars for a rehabilitation of the bridge and that he would like to see some 
background material supporting the historical claim.  Mr. Lovelace said that just because the 
bridge is listed as historical doesn’t mean it can’t be replaced.  Mr. Dawley agreed stating that it 
is possible that total replacement would be allowed or that just some of the historical aspects 
would have to be maintained. 
 
Councilmember Quam asked if the bridge needed to be rehabilitated or replaced at this time.  
Mr. Lovelace said he was not sure but the bridge deck would need to be replaced even in a 
rehabilitation project.  His feeling is that if a significant portion of the bridge needs to be 
removed in order to rehab it, the bridge might as well be replaced.  Councilmember Fletcher 
asked if it was possible to have a more attractive bridge if totally replaced while maintaining 
some of the historic nature.  Mr. Dawley said that concept would be available in a redesign. 
 
Mr. Dawley discussed the funding options available and said since the cost of the project would 
be split between two cities, some type of joint powers agreement would have to be drafted for 
the project.  He said in order to be eligible for federal funding; the bridge must have a sufficiency 
rating of less than 50 for replacement and less than 80 for rehabilitation.  He said St. Alban’s 
bridge does not qualify for replacement funding since its rating is still above 50.  This being the 
case, he said federal funds will cover 80 percent of construction costs, with the remaining 20 
percent of construction cost as well as 100 percent of the design and indirect costs the 
responsibility of the local authority.  He said the selection process for federal funds is done by 
the Metropolitan Council and that the selection of projects is competitive.  The next selection 
process will be in 2013, with the funds not available until 2017. 
 
He said the bridge currently qualifies for State Bridge Bond Funds since the bridge is 
functionally obsolete and has a rating below 80.  He said state funds are available for up to 100 
percent of abutment-to-abutment costs for eligible rehabilitation and reconstruction projects, 
while the roadway approach, bridge removal costs and design costs would be the responsibility 
of the city.  He said these funds can be used for the 20 percent local match for federal funds.  
He said there are currently no bridges waiting of the Bridge Prioritization List for use of State 
Bridge Bond Funds and cities have been encouraged to pass resolutions identifying their priority 
bridge projects to ensure funds are used and not reallocated to other priorities.  He provided a 
sample resolution which would be the first step in applying for the funds. 
 
Councilmember Olson asked why the cities would not want to wait until the bridge’s rating dips 
below 50 so we could get federal funds. Mr. Dawley said he did some calculations using both 
the state and federal funding formulas and that the overall cost would still be about 80/20 in 
either scenario (80% paid by federal or state, 20% paid by the two cities).  Councilmember 
Fletcher asked if it was easier to obtain state funding.  Mr. Dawley said it was.  Mr. Lovelace 
said the process to obtain federal funds is strict, while state funds are distributed by the Army 
Corp of Engineers who tends to be more flexible. 
 
City Attorney Kelly asked what the chances were for replacement versus rehabilitation.  Mr. 
Lovelace said about 50/50. 
 
Councilmember Miller asked if the Bridge Bond Funds need to be paid back.  Mr. Dawley said  
the funds were technically grants created in the state bonding bill.  He said due to the 35W 
bridge collapse and closer scrutiny on bridges, more funds have become available.  Miller asked 
if a combination of funds could be used for a project.  Mr. Dawley said he was not sure.  Miller 



asked if there any other funding sources available.  Mr. Dawley said these were the main ones 
that cover the bridge structure itself, but there are Township Bridge Funds available for cities 
that were not state aid cities like Excelsior and Greenwood.  He said if these funds were 
deemed appropriate, they would cover design costs over $10,000.  Mr. Lovelace discussed 
Heritage Funds but doubted the bridge would qualify. 
 
City Attorney Kelly asked if there was one funding process that gave the cities greater control 
over the design process.  Mr. Dawley said the fact the bridge is eligible to be historical; any 
design would need to be approved the appropriate federal or state agency depending on which 
entity funds the project.  Mr. Lovelace said dealing with the Army Corp of Engineers for state 
funding would allow for more flexibility. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked about arguing for replacement based on safety concerns.  Mr. 
Lovelace said safety could be a factor in making a case for replacement. He said the Sufficiency 
Rating will help determine the current safety condition of the bridge.  He said Mn/DOT is 
currently conducting a load capacity test on the bridge and based on that outcome, the bridge 
cities may need to limit the weight capacity of the bridge.  City Attorney Kelly asked if there was 
a load capacity in which the bridge has to be replaced rather than rehabbed.  Mr. Lovelace said 
he was not sure, but the current bridge has a load rating of 12.6 and a new bridge would have a 
minimum load rating of 20.  Councilmember Fletcher asked was what the original design 
capacity was for the bridge.  Mr. Lovelace said it was designed for smaller loads and guessed it 
was designed around a 15 load rating.   
 
Mr. Dawley presented a cost estimate for both the rehabilitation and replacement of the St. 
Alban’s bridge.  He noted the estimate included a 15 percent contingency and a 30 percent 
indirect cost to arrive at the total project costs for each alternative. 
 
Mr. Dawley presented and distributed slides illustrations showing concepts of what the bridge 
might look like with rehabilitation and replacement.  He said he was available to answer any 
questions. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if the space between the piers could be open to improve the 
sight lines for boats.  Mr. Lovelace said they could and they even could be removed with a 
single span bridge. 
 
Mayor Kind asked if reconstruction funds included widening of the road.  Mr. Dawley said that 
the replacement cost estimate includes updating the bridge to today’s standards (including 
widening the bridge), but that rehabilitation cost does not include widening the bridge road.  
Kind asked if the channel could be widened.  Mr. Lovelace said it could be in a replacement 
scenario. 
 
Councilmember Page commented that he felt the bridge has no aesthetic value.  City 
Administrator Luger said the cities may have very little choice in the redesign of the bridge due 
to its designation.  Councilmember Fletcher commented that the state funding process may 
allow a replacement of the bridge with the retention of some of the original historic design 
aspects.  Mr. Lovelace said this may be true but cautioned the determination is totally 
subjective. 
 
Councilmember Page asked if navigation would play a role in the decision since the channel 
needs to be widened to accommodate boat traffic.  Councilmember Rose asked if a bridge 
posed a danger to the general public could it be removed from the list.  Mr. Dawley said those 
concerns should be voiced along with structural concerns.  Councilmember Miller noted that 
widening the channel would bring in other outside agencies into the process and increase the 
cost of the project. 
 



Councilmember Fletcher asked if the construction costs would be cheaper if the bridge kept its 
structural components.  Mr. Lovelace said the cheapest option would be a single span. 
 
Councilmember Rose asked if there have been any previous construction on the bridge to 
update it.  Mr. Lovelace said the records show only minor repairs over the years. 
 
Councilmember Miller asked if the pedestrian bridge would be impacted.  Mr. Dawley said it 
would be unaffected.  Mr. Lovelace said the new bridge would match the height of the 
pedestrian bridge. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked if there was any downside to adopting a resolution prioritizing 
the bridge if there were no immediate plans to address it.  Mr. Lovelace said “no” and that, by 
law, the city is required to have a priority list.  Mr. Dawley said it’s the city’s responsibility to 
identify the need within their community.  Mayor Kind asked if the next step in the process was 
to adopt the resolution.  Mr. Dawley said it would be if it’s the desire of the cities to move 
forward.  He said another step would be the drafting of the joint powers agreement, then to start 
the design process based on the historical parameters. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked what the expense would be to get a preliminary review by the 
Army Corp of Engineers.  Mr. Dawley said between five and ten thousand dollars.  Mr. Lovelace 
noted that once you meet with them, you have a pretty good idea what their attitude is regarding 
your design.  Mr. Dawley said a preliminary meeting allows for an opportunity to refine the plan 
and more closely estimate the associated costs. 
 
Mayor Kind asked Greenwood council members if they are comfortable using the services of 
WSB Engineering (Excelsior’s engineering firm) or whether the council wanted to involve 
Greenwood’s firm (Bolton & Menk). The consensus was that it made sense to use one 
engineering firm.  City Attorney Kelly said that in lieu of a joint powers agreement a simple 
mutual agreement to share consultant costs between the cities should be sufficient.  Mayor Kind 
indicated that one city should draft the document and send it to the other city for their review.  
Councilmember Fletcher suggested that Greenwood City Attorney Kelly draft the agreement 
since Excelsior has already assumed some expense for some preliminary engineering costs. 
Those in attendance agreed. 
 
Councilmember Page suggested the cities may want to hold off on adopting any resolutions at 
this time.  Mr. Lovelace said that would be fine since getting on the funding list early doesn’t 
matter because funding decisions are made once plan designs are completed. 
 
Mayor Ruehl said the cities should not adopt any resolutions until they know what they need to 
do in terms of rehabilitation or replacement of the bridge.  He said he’s cautious on spending 
taxpayer money and doesn’t want to assume that replacement is the path until there is a 
justification for doing so.  He said if the bridge is not “historically significant” he doesn’t see the 
need to spend extra money in rehabilitating it.  He also doesn’t see the need to spend upwards 
of ten thousand dollars to “find out” what direction the cities need to go in its planning and 
design process.  Mr. Lovelace said they could meet with the Army Corp of Engineers for much 
less, but there’s always the possibility that calculations and the like may be necessary for them 
to make their determination.  Mayor Ruehl is not interested in justifying to anyone why the 
bridge needs to be removed and replaced.  Mr. Lovelace said the meeting is necessary to 
determine if it needs to be removed or rehabbed.  Mayor Ruehl said the city first needs to know 
if and why the bridge is deemed historical.  If there’s no justification the cities need to argue 
against the more expensive rehab project. 
 
Councilmember Quam asked why there was a need to fix the bridge at this time.  Mayor Ruehl 
agreed noting there are additional inspections being conducted. He doesn’t support spending 
money to find out the direction to go when we may not need to at this time.  Councilmember 



Rose said there needs to be an investigation on how the bridge may have gotten on the list and 
what the qualifications are to permit replacement. 
 
Councilmember Page asked if there would be any advantage to having citizens approach the 
Army Corp of Engineers asking that the bridge be replaced.  Mr. Lovelace said there would be 
none in the initial stages, but if the cities submitted a design and were denied, then they should 
voice their opinions.  He reiterated that there is no clear definition on when the bridge must be 
replaced and that the process is dependent on a subjective decision. 
 
City Attorney Kelly said there is a need to figure out the stages of the decision process to 
provide the cities a clear understanding of it. 
 
Mayor Ruehl stated for the record that he’s not trying to replace a bridge of historic significance, 
rather he trying to understand why it would be deemed historically significant.  
 
City Attorney Kelly said the cities need to determine a list of what they want regarding the bridge 
so it could be passed on to WSB during the design process. 
 
Councilmember Rose asked if the bridge is required to be rehabilitated would it be redone in the 
same manner as it currently exists or if it would need to meet today’s load capacity standards 
which would make the bridge “beefier.”  Mr. Lovelace said the bridge would need to be rebuilt to 
the current required standards. 
 
Mayor Kind summarized the discussion noting that City Attorney Kelly would draft a mutual 
agreement between the cities and that she and Excelsior City Administrator Luger would review 
the Historic Bridge Report to see if it includes information on why the bridge is eligible to be 
listed as historic. Mr. Dawley said they would provide the staging information to Mr. Kelly. 
 

3. Adjournment 
 
Rose moved to adjourn.  Second by Quam.  Motion was approved by a majority of those 
present.  Meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm.  
 
 

Respectfully submitted 
Gus Karpas 
Greenwood City Clerk 
 

 



Greenwood City Council as Board of Appeal and Equalization 
Thursday, April 12, 2012 - 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers   20225 Cottagewood Road Deephaven, MN  55331 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Approval of Agenda 
Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 
Councilmembers present:  Kind, Fletcher, Page and Rose 
Councilmembers absent:  Quam 
Staff present: Clerk Karpas 
Hennepin County Assessors:  Rob Winge and Melissa Potter 
 
Councilmember Page moved to approve the amended agenda.  Second by 
Councilmember Fletcher.  Motion carried 4-0. 

        
2. Hear Resident Property Valuation Appeals 

Mayor Kind reviewed the appeals process.  She said there were two appeals before the 
Council. 
 
a. John Musgjerd, 5145 Curve Street, submitted a letter outlining his argument for a 

reduction which includes requesting that his reduction be equal to the five to seven 
percent average drop for other lakeshore properties on Lake Minnetonka, that a 
reduction is warranted since his home located on the north side of St. Alban’s Bay 
which includes Curve Street, Greenwood Circle and West Streets was the only one 
not to receive a reduction in 2012 and that the loss of some significant trees have 
had an impact on the value of his land. 

 
Mayor Kind asked Ms. Potter if she had the opportunity to visit Mr. Musgjerd’s 
property.  Ms. Potter said she had not but would like to. 
 
Councilmember Page moved to continue the appeal of John Musgjerd to the April 
26th board of appeal reconvene meeting to allow time for the Ms. Potter to schedule 
an appointment to review the inside of Mr. Musgjerd’s home.  Second by 
Councilmember Rose.  Motion carried 4-0. 

 
b. Steve and Deb Kind, 5140 Curve Street, submitted a request to appeal their 

valuation but have since met with the assessor and have come to an agreement and 
therefore are withdrawing their request. 
 

c. Charles Wendle, 29000 St. Alban’s Green, was unable to attend the meeting and 
submitted his appeal in writing.  The letter outlined his concerns about the value of 
his property quadrupling over a 15 year period.  His letter outlined his reasons for a 
reduction in his valuation. 
 
Mayor Kind asked Ms. Potter if she had the opportunity to walk through Mr. Wendle’s 
home.  Ms. Potter said she had not, but would like to. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher moved to continue the appeal of Charles Wendle to the 
April 26th board of appeal reconvene meeting to allow time for the Ms. Potter to 
schedule an appointment to review the inside of Mr. Wendle’s home.  Second by 
Councilmember Rose.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Councilmember Fletcher asked about the process since he was under the 
impression that this was the meeting to make your appeal and that the second 
meeting is when the assessors come back with their recommendation.  He 



questioned whether those appealing would have an opportunity to speak at the April 
26th meeting.  Councilmember Rose felt they should be able to.  Ms. Potter said it 
was up to the Council serving as the board of appeal. 
 
Councilmember Page commented that if a resident was serious about appealing 
their valuation, they should show up to the meeting and not submit their information 
at the last minute to give the assessors enough time to enter their property and 
conduct their necessary review prior to the meeting. 
 
Mayor Kind asked if the assessors would follow up with those appealing to gain 
access prior to the next meeting.  Ms. Potter said yes and if they aren’t able to gain 
access, they would recommend no change but that doesn’t prohibit them from going 
on to the County Board. Mayor Kind clarified that according to law, the local board 
cannot make a change benefiting a property owner who refuses access to the 
assessor. So if Ms. Potter and the property owners are unable to find a time for her 
to review their homes, the local board cannot take any action. 

 
3. Recess 

Councilmember Page moved to recess the Board of Review to April 26th at 6 p.m.  
Second by Councilmember Rose.  Motion carried 4-0.  The Board adjourned at 6:12 
p.m.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Gus E. Karpas 
Greenwood City Clerk 
 



Greenwood City Council 
Thursday, April 12, 2012 - 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers   20225 Cottagewood Road Deephaven, MN  55331 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Approval of Agenda 
Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 6:12 PM 
Council present:  Kind, Fletcher, Page, Quam and Rose 
Council absent:  Quam 
Staff present: Clerk Karpas 
 
Councilmember Page moved to approve the agenda.  Second by Councilmember 
Fletcher.  Motion carried 4-0. 

        
2. Discuss – Potential Expansion of City Docks 

 
Mayor Kind discussed the low water situation and said Councilmember Page had some 
information for the Council. 
 
Councilmember Page said that as the Greenwood representative to the Lake 
Minnetonka Conservation District’s (LMCD) Board he made a motion that the LMCD 
issue a low water declaration.  Doing so permitted applications for temporary dock 
extensions to allow for expansions to water levels conducive to boat storage.  He said 
there are two types of applications, one for residential docks and one for multiple docks. 
 
He said residential dock expansions are limited to twenty feet, any more would require a 
variance.  He said the application process permits the LMCD to know who expanded 
their dock so they can be brought back into compliance once the water level rises. 
 
He said the multiple docks application requires more mathematics.  He said he had a 
conversation with the director of the LMCD regarding the recommendation given to the 
city that they extend their dock out an additional thirty-two feet and how he felt that 
seemed excessive.  The director told him he didn’t think that distance was out of line. 
 
Mayor Kind discussed the current layout of the city’s docks.  She said the main dock 
portion extends one hundred feet from the Ordinary High Water Level (OHWL).  
Councilmember Page said the depth at the end of the dock is around three feet and the 
permit would allow for an extension to obtain a four foot depth.  Kind said she visited a 
property adjacent to the city docks and measured a depth of three and a half feet at a 
distance of about sixty-three and feet from the shore. 
 
Mayor Kind said she and Councilmember Page would conduct some measurements this 
weekend so the appropriate information can be gathered for the application. 
 
The Council reviewed the application form. 
 
Councilmember Page asked how much the extensions would cost the city.  
Councilmember Fletcher said $1,980 installed.  Mayor Kind noted that they could be 
resold after use.  Page said he wouldn’t want to install any docks until we’re sure to what 
extent they would need to be extended.  It was noted the official city dock season begins 
on May 15, so there is time to apply for the extension and install the docks. 

 
Councilmember Page moved to direct staff to complete the necessary low water 
variance application to extend the city docks using the information obtained by Mayor 
Kind and Councilmember Page and submit it to the Lake Minnetonka Conservation 



District for their consideration. If the variance is approved, the city clerk is authorized to 
order the installation of the city floating dock system from Dock & Lift, Inc. with the 
addition of a dock extension in an amount not to exceed $1980 paid from the city’s 
marina fund.  Second by Councilmember Fletcher.  Motion carried 4-0. 

 
3. Adjourn 

Councilmember Page moved to adjourn the special session.  Second by Councilmember 
Fletcher.  The motion carried 3-1.  Councilmember Rose voted against the motion and 
did not provide his reasoning.  Meeting adjourned at 6:37 pm.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Gus E. Karpas 
Greenwood City Clerk 
 



 

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

Apr 24, 2012  04:04pm 

Check Issue Date(s): 04/01/2012 - 04/30/2012  

 

Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

04/12 04/12/2012 10549 245 ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC. 502-20100 1,216.00 

04/12 04/12/2012 10550 799 AMERICAN ELECTRIC INC 101-20100 25.00 

04/12 04/12/2012 10551 738 AVENET, LLC 101-20100 90.00 

04/12 04/12/2012 10552 762 CATALYST GRAPHICS INC 101-20100 60.50 

04/12 04/12/2012 10553 Information Only Check  V101-20100 .00 

04/12 04/12/2012 10554 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 10,984.05 

04/12 04/12/2012 10555 757 CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP 101-20100 1,300.00 

04/12 04/12/2012 10556 761 DEBRA KIND 101-20100 21.69 

04/12 04/12/2012 10557 52 EXCELSIOR FIRE DISTRICT 101-20100 31,610.94 

04/12 04/12/2012 10558 68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 602-20100 21.75 

04/12 04/12/2012 10559 99 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 101-20100 1,566.00 

04/12 04/12/2012 10560 105 METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV 602-20100 2,598.16 

04/12 04/12/2012 10561 701 Popp Telecom 101-20100 8.28 

04/12 04/12/2012 10562 38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 101-20100 25,743.58 

04/12 04/12/2012 10563 136 Sun Newspapers 101-20100 148.36 

04/12 04/12/2012 10564 745 Vintage Waste Systems 101-20100 1,568.40 

04/12 04/12/2012 10565 145 XCEL 602-20100 585.25 

04/12 04/23/2012 10566 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 602-20100 477.50 

04/12 04/23/2012 10567 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 114.13 

04/12 04/23/2012 10568 784 HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 101-20100 362.50 

04/12 04/23/2012 10569 3 KELLY LAW OFFICES 101-20100 851.00 

04/12 04/23/2012 10570 742 Marco, Inc. 101-20100 269.77 

          Totals: 79,622.86 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 04/01/2012 - 04/30/2012 Apr 24, 2012  04:19pm 

 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC.

16271 04/04/2012245 ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC. STREET SWEEPING 1,216.00 

          Total ALLIED BLACKTOP, INC. 1,216.00 

AMERICAN ELECTRIC INC

032612 03/26/2012799 AMERICAN ELECTRIC INC ELEC PERMIT REFUND 25.00 

          Total AMERICAN ELECTRIC INC 25.00 

AVENET, LLC

30515 03/27/2012738 AVENET, LLC DOMAIN NAME REGISTRATION 90.00 

          Total AVENET, LLC 90.00 

BOLTON & MENK, INC.

0146539 03/31/201251 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 2011 SANITARY SWR REHAB 27.50 

0146540 03/31/20122011 MISC ENGINEERING FEES 450.00 

          Total BOLTON & MENK, INC. 477.50 

CATALYST GRAPHICS INC

77849 03/27/2012762 CATALYST GRAPHICS INC CITY NEWSLETTER 60.50 

          Total CATALYST GRAPHICS INC 60.50 

CITY OF DEEPHAVEN

033112 03/31/20129 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 1ST QTR SURCHARGE REPORT 114.13 

APRIL 2012 04/01/2012Clerk Services 3,143.00 

Postage 37.35 

COPIES 4.90 

SNOW PLOWING/SANDING/SALT 1,456.75 

BIKE PATH 325.04 

STREETS 780.07 

WEED/TREE/MOWING 162.52 

PARK MAINTENANCE 325.04 

STORM SEWERS 81.26 

RENT & EQUIPMENT 542.95 

STREET SWEEPING 1,050.00 

ZONING 209.22 

1st Qtr Building Permits 2,827.30 

SCHOOL DISTRICT LUNCH 35.65 

SCHOOL DISTRICT LUNCH 3.00 

          Total CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 11,098.18 

CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP

021972 03/30/2012757 CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP 2011 AUDIT 1,300.00 

          Total CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP 1,300.00 

DEBRA KIND

040612 04/06/2012761 DEBRA KIND REIMBURSE - FEDEX 21.69 

          Total DEBRA KIND 21.69 

EXCELSIOR FIRE DISTRICT

4/15/12 04/12/201252 EXCELSIOR FIRE DISTRICT 1st Quarter - Buildings 15,001.20 

1st Quarter - Operations 16,609.74 



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 04/01/2012 - 04/30/2012 Apr 24, 2012  04:19pm 

 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

          Total EXCELSIOR FIRE DISTRICT 31,610.94 

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL

36355 04/05/201268 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL Gopher State calls 21.75 

          Total GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 21.75 

HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 

5207 04/13/2012784 HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT TREE CONSULTATION 362.50 

          Total HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 362.50 

KELLY LAW OFFICES

5975 04/13/20123 KELLY LAW OFFICES GENERAL LEGAL 333.50 

5976 04/13/2012LAW ENFORCE PROSECUTION 517.50 

          Total KELLY LAW OFFICES 851.00 

LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC

040412 04/04/201299 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 2nd Quarter Levy 1,566.00 

          Total LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 1,566.00 

Marco, Inc.

201172244 04/13/2012742 Marco, Inc. Copier lease 269.77 

          Total Marco, Inc. 269.77 

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV

0000986131 04/03/2012105 METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV Monthly wastewater Charge 2,598.16 

          Total METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV 2,598.16 

Popp Telecom

992015210 03/31/2012701 Popp Telecom Local, Long dist. & DSL 8.28 

          Total Popp Telecom 8.28 

SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT

040112 04/01/201238 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 2nd quarter lease 11,367.00 

APRIL 2012 04/01/2012OPERATING BUDGET 14,376.58 

          Total SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 25,743.58 

Sun Newspapers

1096991 03/29/2012136 Sun Newspapers ASSESSMENT 76.42 

1099500 04/05/2012CHANNEL DRIVE 71.94 

          Total Sun Newspapers 148.36 

Vintage Waste Systems

032612 03/26/2012745 Vintage Waste Systems City Recycling Contract 1,568.40 

          Total Vintage Waste Systems 1,568.40 

XCEL

032812 03/28/2012145 XCEL Sleepy Hollow Road * 9.48 

4925 MEADVILLE STREET * 9.49 



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     3 

Input Date(s): 04/01/2012 - 04/30/2012 Apr 24, 2012  04:19pm 

 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

SIREN 3.59 

LIFT STATION #1 32.12 

LIFT STATION #2 27.54 

LIFT STATION #3 21.19 

LIFT STATION #4 26.33 

LIFT STATION #6 51.29 

Street Lights * 404.22 

          Total XCEL 585.25 

Total Paid: 79,622.86 

Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 79,622.86 



Variance with Variance with 

Month 2011 2012 Prior Month Prior Year

January $686,781 $712,814 -$56,305 $26,033

February $693,859 $704,873 -$7,941 $11,014

March $675,719 $690,422 -$14,451 $14,703

April $629,569 $0 -$690,422 -$629,569

May $593,928 $0 $0 -$593,928

June $555,064 $0 $0 -$555,064

July $776,650 $0 $0 -$776,650

August $768,223 $0 $0 -$768,223

September $599,139 $0 $0 -$599,139

October $512,188 $0 $0 -$512,188

November $440,946 $0 $0 -$440,946

December $769,119 $0 $0 -$769,119

Bridgewater Bank Money Market $484,629

Bridgewater Bank Checking $2,575

Beacon Bank CD $120,000

Beacon Bank Money Market $83,118

Beacon Bank Checking $100

$690,422

ALLOCATION BY FUND

General Fund $180,266

General Fund Designated for Parks $27,055

Bridge Capital Project Fund $59,970

Stormwater Special Revenue Fund $7,206

Sewer Enterprise Fund $369,001

Marina Enterprise Fund $46,924

$690,422

City of Greenwood

Monthly Cash Summary

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

Ja
nu

ar
y

Feb
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
Apr

il
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly

Aug
us

t

Sep
te

m
be

r

O
ct
ob

er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

2011

2012



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 04/02/2012 to 05/01/2012 Apr 25, 2012  10:14am 

 

Pay Per Check Check Amount

Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 5011201 Void .00 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 5011202 Void .00 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 5011203 Void .00 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 5011204 Void .00 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 5011205 Void .00 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 501201201 Debra J. Kind 34 307.05 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 501201202 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 104.70 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 501201203 H. Kelsey Page 35 204.70 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 501201204 Quam, Robert 32 204.70 

05/01/12 PC 05/01/12 501201205 William Rose 36 204.70 

          Grand Totals: 1,025.85 



ORDINANCE NO. 209 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA AMENDING  
GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 1140.85, SUBDIVISION 2 REGARDING DISEASED TREES 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 

 
SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.85, subdivision 2 is amended to read as follows:  
 
“Subd. 2. Nuisance Declared. The following are public nuisances whenever they are found within the city: 
1. Any living or standing elm tree or part thereof infected to any degree with Dutch elm disease fungus, or which harbors 

any of the elm bark beetles. 
2. Any dead or dying elm tree or part thereof, including logs, branches, stumps, firewood, or other elm material from 

which the bark has not been removed. Bark does not have to be burned (or otherwise effectively treated). 
3. Any living or standing oak tree or part thereof infected to any degree with oak wilt. 
4. Any living or standing tree affected by any other pathogen determined to be harmful by the state of Minnesota.” 

 
SECTION 2. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2012. 
 
There were ____ AYES and ____ NAYS as follows: 
 
Greenwood City Council YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
     

Mayor Debra Kind     
Councilman Tom Fletcher     
Councilman H. Kelsey Page     
Councilman Bob Quam     
Councilman William (Biff) Rose     
     

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 
 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

  

  

 
 
 
 

CITY OF GREENWOOD NOTICE 
 

As required by ordinance code section 125, 
the Greenwood city council appoints  

city clerk Gus Karpas as the “responsible 
authority” for the city. 

 
The responsible authority answers  

inquiries from the public concerning the 
provision or dissemination of government 

data. The responsible authority also is 
charged with creating an inventory of data  

that the city maintains. 
 

All data is presumed public data unless 
specifically determined confidential or private 

by state or federal Law. 
 
 

Updated May 2012 
 

 



 SOUTH LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPARTMENT BRYAN LITSEY

 Serving Excelsior, Greenwood, Shorewood and Tonka Bay    Chief of Police

 24150 Smithtown Road Office  (952) 474-3261

 Shorewood, Minnesota 53331           Fax  (952) 474-4477

M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Gus Karpas, Greenwood City Clerk

FROM: Bryan Litsey, Chief of Police

DATE: April 19, 2012 - Thursday    

RE: City of Excelsior - 2012 Seasonal Park and Dock Patrol Services

The South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) is once again planning to provide

park and dock patrol services this summer for the City of Excelsior.  The proposal prepared

by the SLMPD is similar to last year and was approved by the Excelsior City Council at

their meeting on April 16, 2012.  Pursuant to the Joint Powers Agreement, as amended in

2006, each member city council needs to take action on this matter prior to services being

provided.  I would appreciate this item being included on your next council meeting agenda

with a recommendation for approval.  Once council action is taken, please let me know the

outcome by e-mail.  As always, please give me a call if you have any questions regarding

this matter.

Cc: Mayor Deb Kind, City of Greenwood

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the South Lake Minnetonka Police Department providing Park and

Dock Patrol Services for the City of Excelsior in 2012 as mutually agreed upon by both

parties.        



























  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 4Aa 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discussion: Policy Regarding City Streets on Private Property 
 
Summary: Resident Duane Kelm has requested that the city realigns the road so it is not on his property when Curve 
Street is repaired. This year it appears that Curve Street is a candidate for repair, so if it is to be considered for 
realignment, now is the time. Attached is the areal view of Curve Street from the Hennepin County website that shows the 
ROUGH property lines and current road alignment. According to the city engineer and city attorney, cities have 
“prescriptive easements” to keep roads where they currently are located, even if they are on private property. However, it 
is a matter of council discretion to relocate roads off of private property if desired, and it may be good public policy to do 
so when possible. It also is possible that a can of worms would be opened if Curve Street is realigned, since there 
probably are other situations were roads are located on private property in Greenwood.  
 
Both Duane Kelm and Lake Bechtell (the property owner affected if Curve Street is realigned) were invited to the council 
meeting. Lake said he would not be attending the meeting, but that he was fine with whatever the council decides. 
 
For the council’s discussion, below are a couple policy options regarding city roads on private property ...  
 

1. On a case-by-case basis, the city council will consider moving city roads off of private property if the following 
conditions are met: 

a. The property owner requests the road be moved. 
b. The request is made at the time the road is slated for major road repair. 
c. The cost of realignment can be done within the road budget constraints. 
d. The realignment does not create a safety problem. 

 
2. The city has “prescriptive easements” to keep roads where they currently are located. To minimize the cost of 

road reconstruction, the city does not intend to make any changes to road alignments that currently are located on 
private property. 

 
Council Action: None required. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move the council approves option ___ as the city’s policy regarding city roads on private property. 
2. Do nothing. 

 



4/11/12 11:23 AMHennepin County GIS - Printable Map

Page 1 of 2http://gis.co.hennepin.mn.us/Property/print/default.aspx?C=456247.6129472949,4973299.785958115&L=9&T=hybrid&D=true&VIS=0,0,0,0,0,0

NOTES: Map Scale: 1'' ≈ 50 ft.
Print Date: 4/11/2012

This map is a compilation of data from various
sources and is furnished "AS IS" with no
representation or warranty expressed or
implied, including fitness of any particular
purpose, merchantability, or the accuracy and
completeness of the information shown.

COPYRIGHT © HENNEPIN COUNTY 2012 

Property
Map



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 4Ab 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: 2012 Road Project Recommendations and Rough Estimates 
 
Summary: Earlier this spring city engineer Dave Martini, councilmember Bob Quam, and mayor Deb Kind toured the city 
to review the current conditions of the roads and identify potential road projects for 2012. Based on the review, a list of 
recommended road projects was compiled and rough estimates are attached for the council's consideration. The 2012 
road project budget is $130,000 for construction and engineering. At the 05-02-12 meeting the council needs to choose 
the road projects to put out for official bids. 
 
For the council’s reference, attached are maps showing current road conditions and past road projects. 
 
Council Action: None required. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move that the city council directs the city engineer to secure bids for the following road projects: ______. 
2. Do nothing. 

 





















  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 4B 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Quarterly Police Update 
 
Summary: Per the city council’s request, representatives from the South Lake Minnetonka Police Department will attend 
Greenwood council meetings on a quarterly basis to give the council a brief update regarding police activities in the city 
and South Lake area. This also will be an opportunity for the council to dialog with SLMPD representatives regarding 
police issues and concerns. Quarterly police updates will be presented at the February, May, August, and November 
council meetings. 
 
Council Action: None required. 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6A 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Potential Excelsior Blvd. Water Project 
 
Summary:	  Councilman Fletcher requested this item be included on the agenda for discussion. 
 
Council Action: No action required.  
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7A 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Variance Requests, Keith and Stacy Carlson, 20965 Channel Drive 
 
Summary:	  Keith and Stacy Carslon are requesting variances o construct a cantilevered fireplace and front entryway 
which would encroach into the minimum required lake yard setback and exceed the maximum permitted impervious 
surface area. 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a lake yard setback of fifty feet as measure from the ordinary high 
water level. The applicants propose a lake yard setback of twenty-five feet for the proposed fireplace. The proposal 
requires a variance of twenty-five feet of the required lake yard setback. 

Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a lake yard setback of fifty feet as measure from the ordinary high 
water level.  The applicants propose a lake yard setback of thirty-five feet for the proposed front entryway. The proposal 
requires a variance of fifteen feet of the required lake yard setback. 

Section 1176.04(3)(3) permits a maximum permitted impervious surface area of 30%. The applicants are seeking a 
variance to exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 6.5%. 

The initial application included a deck extension that would encroach into the required lake setback which was removed 
from the request and will be reviewed at the May 16 Planning Commission meeting. 

Code section 1155.05, subd. 5 states the adopted findings shall address the following questions:  
(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 

 
Planning Commission Action: Motion by Commissioner Paeper to recommend the City Council approve the 
variance requests to encroach twenty-five feet into the required lake yard setback for the proposed cantilevered 
fireplace, to encroach fifteen feet into the required lake yard setback for the proposed front entryway and the 
request to exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface area by an amount equaled to what was presented 
minus the area of the deck expansion, as presented for 20965 Channel Drive. Cook seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried 5-0.  It was noted the applicant granted a sixty-day extension for official action on the proposed deck.   

Council Action: Action required by May 19, 2012. Possible motions … 

1. I move the council approves (or denies) the variance requests by Keith and Stacy Carlson to construct a 
cantilevered fireplace that encroaches twenty-five feet into the required fifty foot lake yard setback, to construct an 
open air entryway that encroaches fifteen feet into the required fifty-foot lake yard setback and exceeds the 
maximum permitted impervious surface area by a percent equal to the proposed impervious surface area minus 
the proposed deck extension, as presented and based on the following findings (must be in writing if denial) 
_____________. I further move that the council directs the city attorney to draft findings of fact for the council’s 
consideration at the ________, 2012 council meeting. 
 

2. I move the council directs staff to immediately draft written notice to Keith and Stacy Carslon stating the council 
needs to extend the 60-day time limit to _________, 2012 for the following reason(s) ___________. 

Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 



   
STAFF REPORT 

Gus Karpas, Zoning Coordinator 
 

Greenwood City Council, Wednesday May 2, 2012 @ 7:00 p.m. 
 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 
Property Owner(s): Keith and Stacy Carlson 
 
Property Address: 20965 Channel Drive 
 
P.I.D. #:  26-117-23 44 0025 
 
Zoning District: R-1A, Single Family Residential 
 
Shoreland District: Yes 
 
Wetlands:  No 
 

REQUEST 
 
The applicant is proposing construct a cantilevered fireplace which would 
encroach into the required lake yard setback and exceed the maximum permitted 
impervious surface area. 
 

CITY CODE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Required Existing House Proposed 

Alterations 
Front Yard 

Setback 
30’ N/A (flag lot) N/A (flag lot) 

Side Yard Setback 
East: 

North*: 
South 

 
15’ 
50’ 
15’ 

 
32’-6” 
22’-6” 

28’-10” 

 
29’ 

23’-6” 
28’-10” 

Lake Yard Setback 50’ 40’-2” 25’ 
Permitted 

Structure Volume 
75,590 c.f. 61,344 c.f. N/A 

Lot Area 15,000 s.f.  19,045 s.f. 19,045 s.f. 
Building Height 
Structure Height 

28’ 
42’ 

Unknown 
Unknown 

N/A 
N/A 

Impervious 
Surface 

30% 39.4% 36.5% 

* The west side yard is an extension of the lake yard and requires a minimum setback of 50 feet. 



 
1. The applicant is requesting a variance from Section 1120.10; minimum required lake 

yard setback along the north property line for the proposed fireplace. 
 

• The minimum required lake yard setback is fifty (50) feet. 
• The applicant proposes a lake yard setback of twenty-five (25) feet. 
• The applicant is requesting a variance of twenty-five (25) feet of the 

required lake yard setback along the north property line. 
 

2. The applicant is requesting a variance from Section 1176:04(3); maximum permitted 
impervious surface area. 

 
• The maximum permitted impervious surface area is 30%. 
• The applicant proposes an impervious surface area of 36.5%. 
• The applicant is requesting a variance to exceed the maximum permitted 

impervious surface area by 6.5%. 
 
3. The applicant’s survey indicates that they would be in compliance with the required 

front and east side yard setbacks. 
 

REQUEST SUMMARY 
 
The existing structure is non-conforming in that the deck encroaches nine feet, 10 inches 
(9’-10”) into the required fifty (50) foot lake yard setback, the existing home encroaches 
twenty-seven feet, six inches (27’-6”) into the required fifty (50) lake yard setback along 
the north property line and exceeds the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 
9.4%.  
 
The applicants are to construct a cantilevered fireplace and covered entryway within the 
required lake yard setback.  The proposed fireplace would encroach twenty-five (25) feet 
into the required fifty (50) foot lake yard setback along the north property line, the 
proposed front entryway would encroach fifteen (15) feet into the required fifty (50) foot 
lake yard setback along the east property line and will exceed the maximum permitted 
impervious surface area by 6.5%. 
 
STRUCTURE SETBACKS 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum front yard setback of 
thirty (30) feet.  The survey submitted by the applicants indicates the nearest proposed 
alteration requiring a variance would be set back one hundred and ninety (190) feet from 
the front property line.  As presented, the proposed front yard setback complies with the 
city’s ordinance. 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum east side yard setback of 
fifteen (15) feet.  The survey submitted by the applicants indicates the nearest proposed 
alteration would be set back twenty-nine (29) from the east property line.  As presented, 
the proposed east side yard setback complies with the city’s ordinance. 
 
The east side yard setback was measured to the proposed from entryway. 
 



Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lake yard setback of fifty 
(50) feet from the Ordinary High Water Level (OHWL) along the north property line.  The 
survey submitted by the applicants indicates the proposed fireplace alteration would be 
set back twenty-five (25) feet from the OHWL.  As presented, the applicant requires a 
variance of twenty-five (25) feet of the required lake yard setback. 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lake yard setback of fifty 
(50) feet from the Ordinary High Water Level (OHWL).  The survey submitted by the 
applicants indicates the proposed front entryway would be set back thirty-five (35) 
feetfeet from the OHWL.  As presented, the applicant requires a variance of fifteen 
(15) feet of the required lake yard setback. 
 
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA 
 
1176:04(3) permits a maximum impervious surface area of thirty percent in the 
Shoreland District.  The survey submitted by the applicants indicates the proposed 
impervious surface area on the property is 36.5%.  As presented, the applicants 
require a variance to exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface area by 
6.5%. 
 
The existing impervious surface area on the lot is 39.4%.  The applicants are modifying 
the impervious surface area on the lot to reduce it by 2.9% 
 
LOT AREA 
 
Section 1120:10 requires a minimum lot area of 15,000 square feet in the R1-A 
Residential District.  The survey submitted by the applicants indicates a lot area of 
19,045 square feet.  The applicant’s lot area exceeds the minimum lot area required by 
the city’s ordinance. 
 
BUILDING/STRUCTURE HEIGHT 
 
Section 1120:20 of the Zoning Ordinance permits a maximum building height of twenty-
eight (28) feet for a principal structure.  Building height is defined as the vertical distance 
measured between the building perimeter grade and the roof line of a building or 
structure.  Section 1140:15(3) of the Zoning Ordinance permits a maximum principal 
structure height of forty-two (42) feet.  Structure height includes the sum total of building 
height and the vertical height above the roof line of all structure. 
 
The proposed deck will be at grade and the proposed fireplace will be under the existing 
roofline. 
  
 
TREE REMOVAL 
 
The survey submitted by the applicant indicates that no trees would be removed as part 
of the project.  The applicant plans future tree removal which will require a conditional 
use permit but are not proposing to do that work at this time.  
 
 
 
 
 



ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 
 
Section 1120:20(2) limits accessory structures to one private garage and on tool house 
shed or similar storage building per principal structure.  Section 1120:20(3) permits a 
maximum combined accessory structure area of 1,000 square feet or 60% percent of the 
total at grade, main floor square footage of the principal structure, whichever is less.  In 
this case the applicant is permitted maximum accessory structure area of 1,000 square 
feet.  There are no accessory structures existing or proposed for the property. 
 
MASSING 
 
Section 1140:18(3) establishes the maximum permitted above grade building volume in 
residential zones based on lot size.  The permitted above grade building volume is 
77,590 cubic feet.  The existing cubic feet based on the footprint times the overall height 
of the structure is 61,344 cubic feet.  The proposed deck will not add to the above grade 
building volume and the proposed fireplace would add minimal to the overall building 
volume. 
 
PRACTICAL DIFFICULTY 
 
The applicants state a practical difficulty in meeting the setbacks is created by a required 
lake yard setback along two property line and that the configuration of the lot as a flag lot 
hinders their ability to comply with the maximum permitted impervious surface area. 
 
Property History 
 
• Hennepin County lists the construction year of the structure as 1964. 
• There are no records indicated variances related to the construction of the existing 

structure. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
 
Motion by Commissioner Paeper to recommend the City Council approve, the 
request by Keith and Stacy Carlson for variances to encroach twenty-five feet into 
the required lake yard setback for the proposed cantilevered fireplace, to 
encroach fifteen feet into the required lake yard setback for the proposed front 
entryway and the request to exceed the maximum permitted impervious surface 
area by an amount equaled to what was presented minus the area of the deck 
expansion, as presented for 20965 Channel Drive.  Cook seconded the motion.  
Motion carried 5-0.  It was noted the applicant granted a sixty day extension for 
official action of the proposed deck. 
 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
 
City Council Action Required:  State Statute 15.99 requires a decision by the 
governing body within 60 days, unless the applicant is notified in writing the initial 60 
days that the time period for a decision is extended.  The City Council must approve, 
modify or deny the request by May 19, 2012. 



























  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7B 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Potential Support of Xcel Energy Alternate Route 
 
Summary:	  Xcel Energy sent a Notice of Certificate of Need proceedings to upgrade the Southwest Twin Cities Bluff 
Creak-Westgate 69kV transmission line to 115kV capacity to all affected property owners in Chanhassen, Excelsior, 
Greenwood, Deephaven, Shorewood, Minnetonka, and Eden Prairie. The notice included an explanation of the regulatory 
process that the Minnesota Public Utilities Commission will follow. A copy of the notice is attached. It includes a map that 
shows an alternate route that moves the route off of the Greenwood Light Rail Trail (LRT) and relocates it to Vine Hill 
Road and Hwy. 7. Another option that has been discussed is the concept of moving the Deephaven substation to Hwy. 
101 and running the route along Hwy. 101 and Hwy. 7. This route would follow major roads vs. a recreational / residential 
corridor. It is unclear which side of Hwy. 7 either of the alternate routes would follow, so it is possible that the alternate 
routes also would affect Greenwood residents. 
 
Greenwood resident Brian Burdick has requested that the council support an alternate route that does not follow the LRT. 
Mr. Burdick’s email to neighbors and letter to Deborah Pile, Minnesota Division of Energy Resources are attached for the 
council’s reference. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move the council directs the mayor to write a letter in support of the Xcel Energy 115kV alternate route that goes 
along ______ and Hwy. 7, and send the letter to Bret Eknes at the Minnesota Public Utilities Commission, 
Deborah Pile at the Minnesota Division of Energy Resources, and to Timothy G. Rogers at Xcel Energy. 
 

2. Do nothing. 
 



















  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7C 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Potential Review of Hardcover and Setback Requirements for Lots Smaller than 15,000 sq. ft. 
 
Summary:	  Greenwood resident Keith Stuessi has requested this item be included on the agenda for council discussion. 
Attached are emails and letters for the council’s review. Mr. Stuessi will be in attendance at the council meeting to make a 
brief presentation and answer questions. 
 
The city zoning administrator suggests the following as a possible next step: Take a look at altering setbacks based on lot 
width for those lots that do not comply with the minimum lot width requirement. Based on our ordinance, a minimum 
house width of 25’ and side yard setback totaling 30’ takes 55’ of lot width. The question that may want to be looked at is 
what is the average lot width in the R-1A District and how many actually comply with the 75' minimum. 
 
The council also may wish to expand the research to include a determination of the number of lots that comply with the 
15,000 sq. ft. minimum. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move the council approves the following next steps regarding review of hardcover and setback requirements for 
lots smaller than 15,000 sq. ft.: 

a. The city zoning administrator gathers information regarding lot sizes (sq. ft. and width) in the R-1A district, 
and determine how many comply with the 15,000 sq. ft and 75’ minimums. 

b. City zoning administrator presents the information to the planning commission.  
c. The planning commission reviews the information and makes recommendations to the city council 

regarding hardcover and/or setback changes (if any) to the zoning code. 
 

2. Do nothing. 
 



From: "Keith Stuessi" <kstuessi@mchsi.com>
Subject: RE: Setback and hardcover requirements

Date: April 20, 2012 1:57:01 PM CDT
To: "'Pat Lucking'" <plucking@idimn.com>, "'Tom Fletcher'" <tfletcher@aexcom.com>, 

<gusk@cityofdeephaven.org>
Cc: "'Debra Kind'" <dkind100@gmail.com>, <kellylawoffices@netscape.net>

1 Attachment, 20.5 KB

Pat,

Attached is a 1-page letter I wrote to the Planning commission in Jan 2006
before Cohen's 3-story house was built on 44% hardcover, and extensive
side-yard setback variances were also granted. That house was completed in
2007.

The other two over-sized houses were Evans at 5040 Meadville and Lee at 5210
Meadville. Both are also 3-story and over 42% hardcover with unreasonable
setback variances allowed. 

I believe the Fronius and Tessier turndowns were in 2005, both in the same
time period as approvals were granted for the 3 huge new houses. 

All three 42% plus hardcover variances were phonied up by prominent builders
that craftily used questionable methods, such as plastic-under-rocks, and
other devious reasons, to build up the "existing hardcover" picture. 

On my watch on the council and running the board of review over 10 years
earlier, we allowed good sized 2 car garages to be built on those 3
properties to replace small one-car or otherwise unusable garages, actually
to conform to garage ordinances. Previous owners were Winters, Holscher and
Holland. Never did we imagine in the 1980's that those garages plus more
landscaping plastic and broken up sidewalks would be the justification for
three-story additions to be allowed to be built over those garages and
rocks.      

I carefully wrote the Cohen letter as you might detect, and also copied
Cohens as they were going to be neighbors. I was also assuming, obviously
stupidly, that the council and planning commission would take up the
apparent issues presented.  

Well, nothing has happened to do what has been suggested in the letter many
times since then: Develop different standards for small lots and odd shaped
lots to consider what actually can be built on those properties.

A few questions: 

1.) As asked in the letter 6 years ago...What can Ted Hanna do with his
small lot tightly hemmed in between Cohens and Trautz? I.e. Assuming his lot
is the same size, why can't he build the same size house as Cohens?

2.) Many older homes that will be tear -downs are within 50 feet of the
lake. Many are also within 1-3 feet of the neighbor's lot line. My
neighbor's house is actually built on my property and the eaves overhang 2
feet. 



What rules should apply if these houses burn down, are torn down or are
significantly modified? I hear many mixed answers which should be a concern
to all of us. 

3.) This whole "hardcover" requirement is baloney and it needs to be
clarified. E.g. Many smaller properties already have 50% hardcover. Is that
still grandfathered?

Also, I replaced 100s of SF of plastic-under-rocks in 1983 that was first
installed in the early 1970's by the previous owner. Hey, now I have
"grandfathered hardcover"!  Though I don't think that is right, why can't I
use that reason for more hardcover for the next owner? 

4.) Physical house constructions aren't the only problems: Our neighbors on
the south installed the Ardennes Forest with 25 foot evergreens on my lot
line about 10 years ago, all the way to their rip-rap - - yes, clearly
within the 50 foot lake setback. As we are on a "point" the infringing trees
bloc our whole south lake view from our house. I never officially complained
to the council, but I did ask the owners 10 years ago to not install those
big trees that are within 50 feet of the lake so close to the lot line
because of the view blocking. They refused. One of those big
"non-conforming" evergreens (now 35 feet high) is now dead and another is
dying. Now what???     

If we decide to sell or are forced to sell for say health reasons, most of
us with small lots have little idea about what we can do.

It is time we have answers. 

Thanks,

Keith Stuessi

-----Original Message-----
From: Pat Lucking [mailto:plucking@idimn.com] 
Sent: Friday, April 20, 2012 11:50 AM
To: 'Keith Stuessi'; 'Tom Fletcher'; gusk@cityofdeephaven.org
Cc: 'Debra Kind'
Subject: RE: Setback and hardcover requirements

Correct me if I'm wrong but my understanding is we only look into issues if
directed by the council to do so.  I will add however that in the 8 plus
years on the planning commission I do not recall Delores Tessier or the
Fronius's coming before our body. I am also curious about the properties you
are referring to with 3 story homes on 10,000 sqft lots.Only one comes to
mind and that was rebuilt on the same or nearly equal foot print which is
allowed/required by the state.
You may want to start with the City council and ask them to direct us in
this matter.Gus are you aware of these 3 homes Keith is referring to? Let me
know.

Pat Lucking



Pat Lucking
Insulation Distributors, Inc.
plucking@idimn.com
952.937-2000 Office
952.937-9809 Fax
952.279-6403 Direct
952.279-6803 Direct Fax
www.idimn.com

-----Original Message-----
From: Keith Stuessi [mailto:kstuessi@mchsi.com]
Sent: Friday, April 20, 2012 10:57 AM
To: 'Tom Fletcher'; gusk@cityofdeephaven.org; Pat Lucking
Cc: 'Debra Kind'
Subject: Setback and hardcover requirements

Tom, Gus and Pat,

I am requesting to be placed on the Wed. May 16 Planning Commission Agenda,
for the purpose of discussing revising setback and hard surface
requirements, particularly for small lots less than R-1 size.

Last Wednesday I heard a lot of dogma expressed to the Carlsons at the
planning commission meeting about "what we allow" and "what we don't allow".

Unfortunately the administration and enforcement of building requirements
has been highly inconsistent even over the past 6-7 years: Just one of many
examples....Three 4500 SF homes with 3-4 car garages have been build on lots
less than 10k SF on Meadville alone. These homes are three-story, all with
over 42% hardcover allowance and incredible side-yard variances granted.
During the same period, Delores Tessier and Joe and Marna Fronius, both with
small lots, merely wanted to bump up their center hip roof lines 3-4 feet to
add dormer windows and a bedroom for grandkids - - but they were turned
down.

We have many major looming problems I fear most of you don't see.

Please let me know if I can appear and what information should I present to
justify my recommended changes.

Thanks,

Keith Stuessi
5000 Meadville
C: 612-386-5597

Jan1206 Coh…oc (20.5 KB)



January 12, 2006 
 
To: Greenwood Planning Commission   cc. Neal & Flo Cohen 
                    Meadville Neighbors 
Subject: Cohen’s request for variance         Mark Kelly 
 
I’ll be out of town the week of the Planning Commission meeting regarding the Cohen’s 
request for a Variance/Conditional Use Permit. Since I haven’t seen the Cohen’s plan, I 
can’t agree to or oppose the new proposal, though I am sure a new home makes more 
long-term sense than to remodel the older home currently on the site. 
 
However I am seriously concerned about the Planning Commission and the Councils’ 
inconsistent behavior surrounding significant variances as required in this case.  
 
Requests for reasonable variances for two similar size properties (Fronius and Tessier) 
were quickly rejected. Both variance requests were asking for modest second floor 
expansions over 50-year existing footprints. Then, over 40% hardcover variances were 
granted for three properties each with huge side-yard variances. (Lee, Evans, Cohen).  
 
Our property is less than a 12,000 SF. We were held to 30% hardcover when we 
expanded in 1984.  What can we tell future owners of our property?  
 
There are 14 lakeshore properties on Meadville-Fairview (out of 48 total) that are less 
than 12,000 SF in addition to Cohen’s property that are all candidates for tear-down and 
re-build. I don’t intend to insult anyone so I’ll put our house first: (Stuessi, West, Burdick, 
Zischke, Lizee, Hessian, Schroeder-Brooks, Speigel, Cochran, Fronius, Hammer, 
Johnson, Tessier, White). 
 
My suggestion is to work with Mark Kelly to draft revised provisions for hardcover and 
setback requirements. Total volume of the revised structure should also be seriously 
considered and regulated. Mark has studied this issue and has good ideas.  
 
It is unfortunate and unfair to neighbors that 40-foot high walls were allowed to be 
constructed 9 feet from the property line as in the case of the new Evans construction. 
The total volume on such a small lot with skyscraper sidewalls is imposing and in my 
opinion infringes on the airspace of neighbors’ properties. Even Tonka Bay restricts 
such constructions more tightly.  
 
Unfortunately most of the small properties mentioned above are next door to other small 
properties which will make your decision process even more complicated.  I’ll be 
interested in your comments and recommendations on these subjects. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Keith Stuessi 
5000 Meadville Street 
Cell: 612-386-5597 
 



From: "Keith Stuessi" <kstuessi@mchsi.com>
Subject: Setback and hardcover requirements

Date: April 20, 2012 10:56:48 AM CDT
To: "'Tom Fletcher'" <tfletcher@aexcom.com>, <gusk@cityofdeephaven.org>, <plucking@idimn.com>
Cc: "'Debra Kind'" <dkind100@gmail.com>

Tom, Gus and Pat,

I am requesting to be placed on the Wed. May 16 Planning Commission Agenda,
for the purpose of discussing revising setback and hard surface
requirements, particularly for small lots less than R-1 size. 

Last Wednesday I heard a lot of dogma expressed to the Carlsons at the
planning commission meeting about "what we allow" and "what we don't allow".

Unfortunately the administration and enforcement of building requirements
has been highly inconsistent even over the past 6-7 years: Just one of many
examples....Three 4500 SF homes with 3-4 car garages have been build on lots
less than 10k SF on Meadville alone. These homes are three-story, all with
over 42% hardcover allowance and incredible side-yard variances granted.
During the same period, Delores Tessier and Joe and Marna Fronius, both with
small lots, merely wanted to bump up their center hip roof lines 3-4 feet to
add dormer windows and a bedroom for grandkids - - but they were turned
down. 

We have many major looming problems I fear most of you don't see. 

Please let me know if I can appear and what information should I present to
justify my recommended changes.  

Thanks,

Keith Stuessi
5000 Meadville
C: 612-386-5597



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7D 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Potential Clean Up of St. Alban’s Bay Shore Along Mtka. Blvd. 
 
Summary:	  Greenwood resident Bob Quinn has requested this item be included on the agenda for council discussion. 
Attached is his email for the council’s review.  
 
He states that St. Alban's Bay is the only bay on the lake that cannot be seen by drivers passing by on Minnetonka Blvd. 
and that the beautiful view is blocked by “really crappy foliage” (buckthorn, etc). He would like the area cleared out so 
people can enjoy the view and “hang out on the shore to relax and catch a few bigguns.” 
 
The 2012 budget includes $13,000 for trees, weeds, and mowing. Last year the city spent $12,000 for these items. If the 
council decides to move forward with a clean-up project and the scope of the project exceeds $1000, there are 
contingency funds ($25,446) available, or a transfer could be made from another fund. Note: If the council wants to pursue 
using city park funds (current balance $27,000), the project must comply with state statute 462.358 subd. 2b (attached).  
 
Additionally, if the scope of the project requires disturbance of the soil, a permit from the Minnehaha Creek Watershed 
District will be required. The MCWD also may have recommendations and possible funding support for shoreline projects. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council directs the city clerk to: 

a. Secure at least 3 estimates to cut down the buckthorn and other scrub bushes along the St. Alban’s Bay 
Minnetonka Blvd. shoreline. 

b. Present the estimates to the council at the June council meeting for consideration. 
 

2. I move the council directs the city clerk to do the following regarding a potential clean-up project for the St. 
Alban’s Bay shoreline along Minnetonka Blvd.: 

a. Consult with the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District to determine best management practices for the 
area and determine if funding support is available. 

b. Secure at least 3 estimates for the shoreline project. The estimates will include: 
i. Clearing all buckthorn and scrub bushes from the area.  
ii. Implementation of best management practices as recommended by the Minnehaha Creek 

Watershed District. 
iii. Other _______ 

c. Report back to the council before moving forward. 
 

3. Do nothing. 
 



From: "Gus Karpas" <administrator@greenwoodmn.com>
Subject: FW: My little rant

Date: April 9, 2012 8:45:59 AM CDT
To: "'Debra Kind'" <dkind100@gmail.com>

Not	  sure	  if	  you	  got	  this.

GUS
	  
From: Bob Quinn [mailto:crabbyirishman@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Saturday, March 31, 2012 12:41 AM
To: administrator@greenwoodmn.com
Subject: My little rant
 
Hello all...
 
I have just a few questions that have been weighing heavily on my mind lately.
 
1) Does anyone on the council realize that St. Alban's Bay is the only bay on the lake that can NOT be seen as
you drive past it? Not only is it not visible, the beautiful view is blocked by really crappy foliage. Tons of
buckthorn and other garbage trees. Do you think this could be cleared out? Completely? There are more than
a few fisherman (myself and my children included) that would love to hang out on the shore to relax and catch
a few bigguns.
 
2) With the fee we pay for dockage, do you think we might be able to replace the tippy, vertigo-inducing
floating docks with the beautiful permanent wooden docks of days gone by? The comparison you make
between our docks (floating and portable) and other permanent docks around the lake should not even be
made. Apples and oranges. All other municipal docks on the lake are sturdy, permanent docks.  Also, I think
funds collected for these slips should be used only for St. Alban's Bay issues only. NOT street repairs or other
general usage. That's what our taxes are for, not to be siphoned off for other general fund uses.
 
Thanks for letting me vent.
Bob Quinn

deb
Highlight



1 MINNESOTA STATUTES 2011 462.358

462.358 OFFICIAL CONTROLS: SUBDIVISION REGULATION; DEDICATION.

Subdivision 1. [Repealed, 1980 c 566 s 35]

Subd. 1a. Authority. To protect and promote the public health, safety, and general welfare,
to provide for the orderly, economic, and safe development of land, to preserve agricultural
lands, to promote the availability of housing affordable to persons and families of all income
levels, and to facilitate adequate provision for transportation, water, sewage, storm drainage,
schools, parks, playgrounds, and other public services and facilities, a municipality may by
ordinance adopt subdivision regulations establishing standards, requirements, and procedures
for the review and approval or disapproval of subdivisions. The regulations may contain varied
provisions respecting, and be made applicable only to, certain classes or kinds of subdivisions.
The regulations shall be uniform for each class or kind of subdivision.

A municipality may by resolution extend the application of its subdivision regulations to
unincorporated territory located within two miles of its limits in any direction but not in a town
which has adopted subdivision regulations; provided that where two or more noncontiguous
municipalities have boundaries less than four miles apart, each is authorized to control the
subdivision of land equal distance from its boundaries within this area.

Subd. 2. [Repealed, 1980 c 566 s 35]

Subd. 2a. Terms of regulations. The standards and requirements in the regulations may
address without limitation: the size, location, grading, and improvement of lots, structures, public
areas, streets, roads, trails, walkways, curbs and gutters, water supply, storm drainage, lighting,
sewers, electricity, gas, and other utilities; the planning and design of sites; access to solar energy;
and the protection and conservation of flood plains, shore lands, soils, water, vegetation, energy,
air quality, and geologic and ecologic features. The regulations shall require that subdivisions be
consistent with the municipality's official map if one exists and its zoning ordinance, and may
require consistency with other official controls and the comprehensive plan. The regulations
may prohibit certain classes or kinds of subdivisions in areas where prohibition is consistent
with the comprehensive plan and the purposes of this section, particularly the preservation of
agricultural lands. The regulations may prohibit, restrict or control development for the purpose
of protecting and assuring access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. The regulations may
prohibit the issuance of permits or approvals for any tracts, lots, or parcels for which required
subdivision approval has not been obtained.

The regulations may permit the municipality to condition its approval on the construction
and installation of sewers, streets, electric, gas, drainage, and water facilities, and similar utilities
and improvements or, in lieu thereof, on the receipt by the municipality of a cash deposit, certified
check, irrevocable letter of credit, bond, or other financial security in an amount and with surety
and conditions sufficient to assure the municipality that the utilities and improvements will be
constructed or installed according to the specifications of the municipality. Sections 471.345 and
574.26 do not apply to improvements made by a subdivider or a subdivider's contractor.

A municipality may require that an applicant establish an escrow account or other financial
security for the purpose of reimbursing the municipality for direct costs relating to professional
services provided during the review, approval and inspection of the project. A municipality may
only charge the applicant a rate equal to the value of the service to the municipality. Services
provided by municipal staff or contract professionals must be billed at an established rate.

Copyright © 2011 by the Office of the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.



2 MINNESOTA STATUTES 2011 462.358

When the applicant vouches, by certified letter to the municipality, that the conditions
required by the municipality for approval under this subdivision have been satisfied, the
municipality has 30 days to release and return to the applicant any and all financial securities tied
to the requirements. If the municipality fails to release and return the letters of credit within the
30-day period, any interest accrued will be paid to the applicant. If the municipality determines
that the conditions required for approval under this subdivision have not been satisfied, the
municipality must send written notice within seven business days upon receipt of the certified
letter indicating to the applicant which specific conditions have not been met. The municipality
shall require a maintenance or performance bond from any subcontractor that has not yet
completed all remaining requirements of the municipality.

The regulations may permit the municipality to condition its approval on compliance
with other requirements reasonably related to the provisions of the regulations and to execute
development contracts embodying the terms and conditions of approval. The municipality may
enforce such agreements and conditions by appropriate legal and equitable remedies.

Subd. 2b. Dedication. (a) The regulations may require that a reasonable portion of the
buildable land, as defined by municipal ordinance, of any proposed subdivision be dedicated to
the public or preserved for public use as streets, roads, sewers, electric, gas, and water facilities,
storm water drainage and holding areas or ponds and similar utilities and improvements, parks,
recreational facilities as defined in section 471.191, playgrounds, trails, wetlands, or open space.
The requirement must be imposed by ordinance or under the procedures established in section
462.353, subdivision 4a.

(b) If a municipality adopts the ordinance or proceeds under section 462.353, subdivision
4a, as required by paragraph (a), the municipality must adopt a capital improvement budget
and have a parks and open space plan or have a parks, trails, and open space component in its
comprehensive plan subject to the terms and conditions in this paragraph and paragraphs (c) to (i).

(c) The municipality may choose to accept a cash fee as set by ordinance from the applicant
for some or all of the new lots created in the subdivision, based on the average fair market value
of the unplatted land for which park fees have not already been paid that is, no later than at the
time of final approval or under the city's adopted comprehensive plan, to be served by municipal
sanitary sewer and water service or community septic and private well as authorized by state law.
For purposes of redevelopment on developed land, the municipality may choose to accept a cash
fee based on fair market value of the land no later than the time of final approval.

(d) In establishing the portion to be dedicated or preserved or the cash fee, the regulations
shall give due consideration to the open space, recreational, or common areas and facilities open
to the public that the applicant proposes to reserve for the subdivision.

(e) The municipality must reasonably determine that it will need to acquire that portion of
land for the purposes stated in this subdivision as a result of approval of the subdivision.

(f) Cash payments received must be placed by the municipality in a special fund to be used
only for the purposes for which the money was obtained.

(g) Cash payments received must be used only for the acquisition and development or
improvement of parks, recreational facilities, playgrounds, trails, wetlands, or open space based
on the approved park systems plan. Cash payments must not be used for ongoing operation or
maintenance of parks, recreational facilities, playgrounds, trails, wetlands, or open space.

Copyright © 2011 by the Office of the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.

deb
Highlight

deb
Highlight

deb
Highlight



3 MINNESOTA STATUTES 2011 462.358

(h) The municipality must not deny the approval of a subdivision based solely on an
inadequate supply of parks, open spaces, trails, or recreational facilities within the municipality.

(i) Previously subdivided property from which a park dedication has been received, being
resubdivided with the same number of lots, is exempt from park dedication requirements. If, as
a result of resubdividing the property, the number of lots is increased, then the park dedication
or per-lot cash fee must apply only to the net increase of lots.

Subd. 2c. Nexus. (a) There must be an essential nexus between the fees or dedication
imposed under subdivision 2b and the municipal purpose sought to be achieved by the fee or
dedication. The fee or dedication must bear a rough proportionality to the need created by the
proposed subdivision or development.

(b) If a municipality is given written notice of a dispute over a proposed fee in lieu of
dedication before the municipality's final decision on an application, a municipality must not
condition the approval of any proposed subdivision or development on an agreement to waive
the right to challenge the validity of a fee in lieu of dedication.

(c) An application may proceed as if the fee had been paid, pending a decision on the appeal
of a dispute over a proposed fee in lieu of dedication, if (1) the person aggrieved by the fee puts
the municipality on written notice of a dispute over a proposed fee in lieu of dedication, (2) prior
to the municipality's final decision on the application, the fee in lieu of dedication is deposited
in escrow, and (3) the person aggrieved by the fee appeals under section 462.361, within 60
days of the approval of the application. If such an appeal is not filed by the deadline, or if the
person aggrieved by the fee does not prevail on the appeal, then the funds paid into escrow must
be transferred to the municipality.

Subd. 3. [Repealed, 1980 c 566 s 35]

Subd. 3a. Platting. The regulations may require that any subdivision creating parcels, tracts,
or lots, shall be platted. The regulations shall require that all subdivisions which create five or
more lots or parcels which are 2-1/2 acres or less in size shall be platted. The regulations shall
not conflict with the provisions of chapter 505 but may address subjects similar and additional to
those in that chapter.

Subd. 3b. Review procedures. The regulations shall include provisions regarding the
content of applications for proposed subdivisions, the preliminary and final review and approval
or disapproval of applications, and the coordination of such reviews with affected political
subdivisions and state agencies. Subdivisions including lands abutting upon any existing or
proposed trunk highway, county road or highway, or county state-aid highway shall also be
subject to review. The regulations may provide for the consolidation of the preliminary and
final review and approval or disapproval of subdivisions. Preliminary or final approval may
be granted or denied for parts of subdivision applications. The regulations may delegate the
authority to review proposals to the planning commission, but final approval or disapproval shall
be the decision of the governing body of the municipality unless otherwise provided by law or
charter. A municipality must approve a preliminary plat that meets the applicable standards and
criteria contained in the municipality's zoning and subdivision regulations unless the municipality
adopts written findings based on a record from the public proceedings why the application
shall not be approved. The regulations shall require that a public hearing shall be held on all
subdivision applications prior to preliminary approval, unless otherwise provided by law or
charter. The hearing shall be held following publication of notice of the time and place thereof in

Copyright © 2011 by the Office of the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7E 

Agenda Date: 05-02-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Ordinance 209, Amending Code Section 310.30, Subd. 5(d) and (f), Use of Sewers (to authorize the 
council to institute programs to ensure compliance with ordinances that prohibit discharge of clean water into the sanitary 
sewer system) 
 
Summary: At the 02-01-12 council meeting the council discussed the possibility of conducting a new “sump pump 
program” to reduce the amount of money the city is paying to treat clean water. The last sump pump program was 
conducted in 2006. At that time it is believed that each property owner was asked to complete a form to certify that their 
sump pump was not hooked up to the sewer system, but there was no follow up with the properties that did not return the 
certification form. If the council desires to conduct a new “sump pump program,” section 310.30 of the code would need to 
be revised. 
 

At the 04-04-12 council meeting the council received input from the city engineer and from Bill Cook (Greenwood resident, 
planning commissioner, and Met Council manager of engineering services). Based on the 04-04-12 discussion, the 
council directed that an ordinance be drafted to conduct a new “sump pump program” and be placed on the 05-02-12 
agenda for a first reading. The ordinance and a proposed certification letter are attached. Both have been reviewed and 
approved by the city attorney. For the council’s reference, the applicable subsections of the current city code also are 
attached and highlighted. 
 
Council Action: None required. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move the council approves the first reading of ordinance 209 as written. 
2. I move the council approves the first reading of ordinance 209 with the following changes ______. 
3. I move the council directs that the certification letter be included on the June council agenda for consideration of 

approval.  
4. I move the council directs that the certification letter be included on the June council agenda for consideration of 

approval with the following changes ______. 
5. Do nothing. 



GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE  CHAPTER 3: BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION 
 

	  

 7 

public property disturbed in the course of the work shall be restored in a manner satisfactory to the city by the 
person making the installation. 

Subd. 4. Prohibited Discharges Into Sanitary Sewer System and Natural Outlets. 

(a)  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any substance not requiring treatment or any substance not 
acceptable for discharge, as determined by the city, Metropolitan Council, or the Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency, into the sanitary sewer system. Only sanitary sewage from approved plumbing fixtures may be 
discharged into the sanitary sewer system. 

(b)  Storm water, ground water, roof runoff, surface water, or unpolluted drainage shall be discharged only to 
specifically designated storm drains or to a natural outlet approved by the city engineer.  

(c)  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following waters or wastes to any public sewer: 

 1)  Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive liquids, solids or gases. 
 2)  Any waters or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids or gases in sufficient quantity, either singly 

or by interaction with other wastes, to injure or interfere with any sewage treatment process, to constitute a 
hazard to humans or animals, to create a nuisance or to create any hazard in the receiving waters of the 
sewage treatment plant, including but not limited to cyanides in excess of 2 milligrams per liter as CN in the 
wastes as discharged to the public sewer. 

 3)  Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than 5.5, or having any other corrosive property capable of causing 
damage or hazard to structures, equipment and personnel of the sewage works or the sewage treatment 
plant. 

 4)  Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of causing obstruction to the flow in sewers, 
or other interference with the proper operation of the sewage works or sewage treatment plant such as, but 
not limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, wood, 
garbage, whole blood, manure, hair and fleshing, entrails, and any paper dishes, cups, or other paper 
containers or paper products, whether whole or ground by garbage grinders. 

 5)  Other substances in amounts in excess of the concentrations permitted under rules and regulations of the 
metropolitan sewer board. 

(d)  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described waters or wastes to any 
public sewer unless such person has obtained a permit from the Metropolitan Council specifically authorizing the 
discharge of such water or waste and unless the conditions, if any, set forth in the permit have been and are 
complied with by such person: 

 1)  Any waters or other liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than 150° Fahrenheit (65°C). 
 2)  Any waters or wastes containing fats, wax, grease, or oils, whether emulsified or not, in excess of 100 

milligrams per liter or containing substances which may solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 
32° and 150° Fahrenheit (0°C and 65°C). 

 3)  Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. 
 4)  Any waters or wastes containing pickling wastes or concentrated plating solutions. 
 5)  Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc and similar substances in such concentration 

so as to cause the waters or wastes to be objectionable or toxic. 
 6)  Any waters or wastes exerting a chlorine requirement or demand such that when the waters or wastes are 

received in the composite sewage at the sewage treatment plant, the chlorine requirement or demand of the 
composite sewage exceeds reasonable limits. 

 7)  Any waters or wastes containing phenols or other taste or odor producing substances in concentrations which 
exceed reasonable limits in view of the applicable requirements of the state, federal or other public agencies 
having jurisdiction over effluent discharge to the receiving waters. 

 8)  Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as may exceed reasonable limits in view 
of the applicable state or federal regulations. 

 9)  Any waters or wastes having a pH in excess of 9.5. 
 10)  Materials that exert or cause: i.) concentrations of inert suspended solids, such as, but not limited to, fullers 

earth, sand, lime, slurries and lime residues, or of dissolved solids, such as, but not limited to, sodium chloride 
and sodium sulfate, which are likely to be harmful to the sewer, sewer works or sewage treatment  
plant. ii.) excessive discoloration, such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutions. iii.) 
unusual BOD or chemical oxygen demand in such quantities as to constitute a significant load on the sewage 
treatment plant. iv.) unusual volume of flow or concentration of waters or wastes constituting “slugs” as 
defined herein. 



GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE  CHAPTER 3: BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION 
 

	  

	  8 

(e)  Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to treatment or reduction by the sewage 
treatment processes utilized by sewage treatment plants, or are amenable to treatment only to such degree that 
the sewage treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of the state, federal or other public agencies 
having jurisdiction over effluent discharge to the receiving waters. 

(f)  Where pretreatment or flow-equalization facilities and/or where grease, oil or sand interceptors are provided for 
any waters or wastes, such facilities and/or interceptors shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and 
effective operation by the user thereof and at no expense to the city. 

(g)  The owner of any property having a building sewer into which industrial wastes are discharged or caused to be 
discharged, shall install a suitable control structure together with such necessary meters and other appurtenances 
in the building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of the industrial wastes. Such structure, 
when required, shall be accessibly and safely located and shall be constructed in accordance with plans approved 
by the city engineer. The structure shall be installed by the owner at their expense, and shall be maintained by 
them so as to be safe and accessible at all times. The owner shall pay all city engineer fees to review the plan. 

(h)  All measurements, tests and analyses of the waters and wastes discharged or caused to be discharged to a 
public sewer shall be determined in accordance with the latest edition of “Standard Methods of the Examination of 
Water and Wastewater,” published by the American Public Health Association, and shall be determined at the 
control structure provided, or in the event that no special control structure has been provided, at the nearest 
downstream manhole in the public sewer from the point at which the building sewer is connected to the public 
sewer. Sampling shall be carried out by customarily accepted methods under the direction of the city engineer to 
reflect the effect of the waters and wastes upon the sewers, sewage works and the sewage treatment plant and to 
determine the existence of hazards to public health, safety and welfare. 

(i)  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the city may enter into a valid agreement with any person whereby 
industrial wastes and/or sewage of unusual strength or character may be discharged to a public sewer and 
accepted by the sewage treatment plant, subject to the payment of special charges to the city thereof by the 
person; and provided that the city shall give its prior, written approval to the special agreement. 

Subd. 5. Prohibited Discharges of Stormwater, Surface Water, Groundwater, Roof Runoff, Subsurface Drainage, or 
Cooling Water and Discharge to Any Sanitary Sewer. 

(a)  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged, directly or indirectly, any stormwater, surface water, 
groundwater, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, foundation drain systems, or cooling water to any sanitary sewer. 
Any person having a roof drain, sump pump, unauthorized swimming pool discharge, cistern overflow pipe or 
surface drain connected and/or discharging into the sanitary sewer shall disconnect and remove any piping or 
system conveying such water to the sanitary sewer system. 

(b)  All construction involving the installation of clear water sump pits shall include a sump pump with minimum size 1-
1/2 inch diameter discharge pipe. The pipe attachment must be a rigid permanent type plumbing such as PVC or 
ABS plastic pipe with glued fittings, copper or galvanized pipe. All discharge piping shall be installed in 
accordance with the building code. Discharge piping shall start at the sump pit and extend through the exterior of 
the building and terminate with not less than 6 inches of exposed pipe. Sump pump discharge location and flow 
shall be consistent with the approved development drainage plan for the lot. The discharge may not be pumped 
directly onto any public right-of-way unless approved by the city engineer or their designee. Any disconnects or 
openings in the sanitary sewer shall be closed and repaired in compliance with applicable codes.  

(c)  Every person owning improved real estate which discharges into the city’s sanitary sewer system shall allow 
inspection by authorized city employees or its agents of all properties or structures connected to the sanitary 
sewer system to confirm there is no sump pump or other prohibited discharge into the sanitary sewer system. Any 
persons refusing to allow their property to be inspected shall immediately become subject to the surcharge as 
described in subsection (f) hereinafter. 

(d)  Every person owning improved real estate that discharges into the city’s sanitary sewer system shall submit to the 
city clerk on or before March 31, 2006 certification that their real estate is not in violation of section 310.30, 
subdivisions 4 and 5. Any owner of any property in violation of section 310.30, subdivisions 4 or 5 shall a) on or 
before March 31, 2006 notify the city clerk of the violation, b) make the necessary changes to comply with section 
310, and c) schedule an inspection of their property to be conducted on or before June 30, 2006 by authorized 
city employees or its agents to verify that the violation has been ended. Any property or structure not inspected or 
not in compliance by June 30, 2006, shall, following notification from the city, comply within 14 calendar days or 
be subject to the surcharge as provided in subsection (f) hereinafter.  

deb
Highlight



GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE  CHAPTER 3: BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION 
 

	  

 9 

(e)  Upon verified compliance with this section, the city reserves the right to re-inspect such property or structure at 
least annually to confirm continued compliance. Any property found not to be in compliance upon re-inspection or 
any person refusing to allow their property to be re-inspected shall, following notification from the city, comply 
within 14 calendar days or be subject to the surcharge as provided in subsection (f) hereinafter.  

(f)  A stormwater surcharge per quarter is hereby imposed and shall be added to every residential utility billing, to 
property owners who are found not in compliance with this section; a surcharge per quarter is hereby imposed 
and shall be added to every commercial or industrial sewer billing, to property owners who are found not in 
compliance with this section. The surcharge shall be added every quarter until the property is verified to be in 
compliance through the city’s inspection program. The stormwater sewer non-compliance surcharge fee amount 
shall be determined by the city council and set forth in chapter 5 of this code book. 

(g)  The city council, upon recommendation of the city engineer, shall hear and decide requests for temporary waivers 
from the provisions of this section where strict enforcement would cause a threat to public safety because of 
circumstances unique to the individual property under consideration. Any request for a temporary waiver shall be 
submitted to the city engineer in writing. Upon approval of a temporary waiver from the provisions of this section, 
the property owner shall agree to pay an additional fee for sanitary sewer services based on the number of 
gallons discharged into the sanitary sewer system as estimated by the city engineer.  

(h)  Violation of this section is a misdemeanor and each day that the violation continues is a separately prosecutable 
offense. The imposition of the surcharge shall not limit the city’s authority to prosecute the criminal violations, 
seek an injunction in district court ordering the person to disconnect the nonconforming connection to the sanitary 
sewer, or for the city to correct the violation and certify the costs of connection as an assessment against the 
property on which the connection was made. 

Section 310.35. Right to Enter.  
The duly authorized employees or representatives of the city bearing proper credentials and identification shall have 
the right to enter all properties served by the city’s sewer system for the purpose of inspection, observation, 
measurement, sampling and testing in accordance with and for the purpose of enforcing the provisions of this 
ordinance. The employees or representatives shall have the power and authority to obtain a warrant to secure entry 
onto a property and shall obtain a warrant to enter any property upon which entry is or has been refused. The 
employees or representatives shall have no authority to inquire into any industrial processes beyond that point in the 
process having a direct bearing on the kind and source of discharge to the sewers or waterways or facilities for 
treatment. 

Section 310.40. Discontinuance of Service.  
Sewer service shall be discontinued when it is determined that a sum equal to the portion of the cost of constructing 
the sewer system attributable to the parcel or property as determined by the assessment proceedings or pursuant to 
the provisions of this code has not been paid or is not in the process of being paid in regular installments. 

Section 310.45. Liability.  
Each user or owner shall be responsible for maintaining and cleaning their sewer connection from the house to the 
sewer main. The city shall not be liable for any stoppages in the sewer system. Each user should provide a suitable 
backwater valve to prevent flooding of basements in the event of sewer stoppage. 

Section 310.50. One House Per Connection.  
Not more than one house or building shall be supplied from one sewer connection, except with the permission of the 
city engineer. 

Section 310.55. Building Sewers.  
Subd. 1. All building sewer connections must be made to the wye or riser provided for that purpose. No sewer 
connection shall be laid in the same trench with water, gas or any other pipe, and all sewer connections must be laid 
far enough from all others to permit the repair or removal or relaying of any one without disturbing the other, unless an 
alternate method is approved by the city engineer. 
Subd. 2. At the time any connection is made to the city sanitary sewer system, all cesspools, septic tanks, or other 
sewage disposal facilities existing on the property that is connected shall be pumped and then filled to earth level with 
suitable material. Piping through cesspools or septic tanks will not be permitted, and connections to buildings with 

deb
Highlight



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 310.30, SUBD. 5(D) and (F), USE OF SEWERS  

TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNCIL TO INSTITUTE PROGRAMS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCES THAT 
PROHIBIT DISCHARGE OF CLEAN WATER INTO THE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 

 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 310.30. Use of Sewers, Subd. 5(d) is amended to read as follows:  

 

 “(d) From time to time the city council may institute the following procedure to ensure compliance with section 310 et seq. 
subdivision 5: 
(i)  A sanitary sewer discharge certification letter with a return certification form shall be sent to every person owning 

improved real estate property that discharges into the city’s sanitary sewer system. 
(ii)  Property owners must return the completed certification form within 14 days of the certification letter notification 

date. Failure to return a fully completed certification form within 14 days of the certification letter notification date 
shall be a misdemeanor and subject the property owner to prosecution as permitted in paragraph (h) below.  In 
addition, any property owner that does not return a fully completed certification form by the deadline will incur a 
surcharge fee on their quarterly sewer utility bill as established in subsection (f) and set forth in chapter 5. 

(iii)  If a property owner requests assistance in completing the certification form or an inspection to determine where 
roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps feed, the inspection will be provided at no cost to the property 
owner. 

(iv)  If a property owner declares they have roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps that are connected to the 
sanitary sewer, they shall have 90 days from the date of mailing of the city's sanitary sewer discharge certification 
letter to remove all such connections. 

(v)  If a property owner certifies that their property has no roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps connected to 
the sanitary sewer system and it subsequently is discovered that the property is not in compliance with this code 
or otherwise has unlawful discharges, the property owner shall be back-charged to the date of the completed 
certification form on file, a surcharge fee, double that provided in paragraph (ii) above, shall be assessed, and 
prosecution for violation of this code, (as permitted in paragraph (h) below), may follow.” 

 

SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 310.30. Use of Sewers, Subd. 5(f) is amended to read as follows:  

 “(f) A sewer non-compliance surcharge fee per quarter is hereby imposed and shall be added to every residential and 
commercial property utility billing issued to property owners who are found not in compliance with this section. The 
sewer non-compliance surcharge fee amount shall be determined by the city council and set forth in chapter 5 of this 
code book. If a property owner certifies that their property is in compliance and it subsequently is discovered that they 
were not in compliance, the property owner will be back-charged to the date of certification and the surcharge fee will 
double.” 

 

SECTION 3. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 

 

Enacted by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2012. 
 

There were ____ AYES and ____ NAYS as follows: 
 
Greenwood City Council YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
     

Mayor Debra Kind     
Councilman Tom Fletcher     
Councilman H. Kelsey Page     
Councilman Bob Quam     
Councilman William (Biff) Rose     
     

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 

 

By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

DR
AF
T

 

 

 
NOTIFICATION DATE: _________, 2012 
 

Sanitary Sewer Discharge 
Certification Letter 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION STATEMENT: Why am I receiving this letter? 
 

As mandated by the Met Council, the city is required to reduce the amount of “inflow” (clean water being discharged into 
the sanitary sewer system) through roof drains, foundation drains, and sump pumps that are connected to the sewer lines 
(illegal in MN since 1968 and also prohibited by city code section 310.30, subd. 5). Please go to www.greenwoodmn.com 
or stop by city hall to view the complete ordinance. 
 

The benefits of reducing the amount of clean water discharged into the sanitary sewer system include: 
• Saves city taxpayers money by reducing the amount of money spent on water treatment and avoiding potential 

Met Council surcharges to the city. 
• Saves the region money by reducing the size of the Met Council infrastructure required. The cost to fix flow 

problems at the local source is estimated to cost $150 million, compared with nearly one billion dollars that would 
be needed to add collection and treatment capacity to handle excessive flow. 

• Reduces the chance of sewer backups into homes and businesses. 
 

To effectuate the above public policy, the city is required to eliminate all roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps 
that are connected to the sanitary system and verify compliance with that code requirement. 
 

NOTICE TO ALL PROPERTY OWNERS: ACTION REQUIRED 

FAILURE TO ACT WILL CAUSE FINANCIAL PENALTIES TO BE INCURRED AND MAY RESULT IN PROSECUTION 
 

PROPERTY OWNER SANITARY SEWER DISCHARGE CERTIFICATION REQUIRED 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO ALL REAL PROPERTY OWNERS IN THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA: 
 

To ensure compliance with state law and city code, ALL REAL PROPERTY OWNERS must FULLY complete and return 
the attached form to city hall by _______, 2012 (deliver in person, by email to administrator@greenwoodmn.com, or use 
the enclosed pre-addressed stamped envelope). Any property owner that does not return the enclosed form within 
14 days will incur a surcharge fee ($300 residential, $750 commercial) on their quarterly sewer utility bill, 
(Greenwood code section 310.30, subd. 5). 
 

Failure to return a fully completed certification form within 14 days of the certification letter notification date shall be a 
misdemeanor and subject the property owner to prosecution as permitted under Greenwood code section 310.30 subd. 
5. A property owner may request assistance in completing the certification form or a physical inspection of their property 
to determine whether roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps feed into the sanitary sewer system. Such assistance 
or inspection will be provided at no cost to the property owner. 
 

In the event you (the real property owner) determines that you have roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps that 
are connected to the sanitary sewer system, you have 90 days from the date of this notice to remove all such connections 
without penalty. 
 

PLEASE BE ADVISED, that if you (the real property owner) certify that your property has no roof drains, foundation 
drains, or sump pumps connected to the sanitary sewer system and it subsequently is discovered that the property is not 
in compliance with the code or otherwise has unlawful discharges, the property owner shall be back-charged to the date 
of the completed certification form on file, a surcharge fee, double that listed above, shall be assessed, and prosecution 
for violation of the code may follow. 
 

~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~ 
 
The city is hopeful that 100% real property owner voluntary compliance will be obtained. If this is not achieved based on 
Met Council flow reports, the city may find it necessary to implement a mandatory inspection program.  
 
There is a great common benefit to the entire city if we solve our inflow problems without mandatory inspections.  
Thank you for your help! 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

DR
AF
T

 

 

 
 
 

Sanitary Sewer Discharge  

Certification Form 
An electronic copy of this form is available for downloading at www.greenwoodmn.com 
 
Names of property owners 

     

 
Phone and/or email 

     

 
Property address 

     

 
City, State, Zip Greenwood, MN 55331 
Property PID Number* 

     

 
 

* See Hennepin County Property Tax statement for Property Identification (PID) number 
 

Please select one of the following two options: 
 

  1. NO EXISTING CONNECTIONS  
I/we, the above named, owners of the above named real property commonly certify that I/we do not have any roof 
drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps that are connected to the sanitary sewer.  
 

ADVISORY NOTE: Sump pumps cannot be connected to drains inside the building structure.  
 

  2. EXISTING CONNECTIONS (must also initial both lines below) 
I/we, the above named, owners of the above named real property commonly certify that I/we do have any roof drains, 
foundation drains, or sump pumps that are connected to the sanitary sewer.  

 

____ I/we agree to voluntarily disconnect all roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps that are connected to the 
sanitary sewer system within 90 days of the date of return of this SANITARY SEWER DISCHARGE 
CERTIFICATION.   

 

____ I/we agree that a city agent/inspector may conduct a physical inspection of our real property to verify code 
compliance and that there are no improper sanitary sewer system connections on or after 120 days from the date of 
this certification.    

 

ADVISORY NOTE: Sump pumps cannot be connected to drains inside the building structure.  
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
 

REQUEST FOR CITY ASSISTANCE 
 

   I/we request assistance, at no charge, in completing this form. 
 

   I/we are not sure whether our roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps feed into the sanitary sewer system.  
I/we hereby request the city inspect our my/our property, at the city's sole expense, to determine if there are any such 
connections to the sanitary sewer system. 

 

ADVISORY NOTE: If on inspection an improper sanitary sewer connection is found, you will have 90 days to remove 
the connection and there will be no surcharge during the 90-day grace period. 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
 

VERIFICATION 
 

The undersigned hereby acknowledge the following: I/we are the property owner(s) above-named and are the sole fee title owner(s) of the above 
described property. I/we understand that by signing this certification form, we certify that all information is true and correct to best of my/our knowledge, 
and acknowledge that if a property owner certifies that their property is in compliance, and it subsequently is discovered that the property is not in 
compliance, the UNDERSIGNED as real property owners will be charged a surcharge fee equal to double the surcharge imposed for non-compliance 
with this certification process back-dated to the date I/we completed (returned) our certification form to the city and that criminal prosecution for violation 
of city code may follow.   
 
Signature of property owner (required)                                                                                           Date: 

     

 

Signature of additional property owner (if any)                                                                                           Date: 

     

 

Signature of additional property owner (if any)                                                                                           Date: 

     

 
 
 

For Office Use Only  Date Received: 

     

  Received By: 

     

 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 9A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects. Related documents may be attached to this cover sheet. 
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



Variance with Variance with 
Month 2011 2012 Prior Month Prior Year
January 0 2,034 -43 2,034
February 0 2,911 877 2,911
March 0 2,516 -395 2,516
April 0 2,746 230 2,746
May 0 0 -2,746 0
June 0 0 0 0
July 0 0 0 0
August 0 0 0 0
September 0 0 0 0
October 0 0 0 0
November 0 0 0 0
December 2,077 0 0 -2,077

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

3,000 

3,500 

City	  of	  Greenwood	  
Website Total Hits 

2011 

2012 



4/15/12 7:32 PMwww.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com Admin

Page 1 of 3http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC…tistics&BeginDate=3%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=4%2F15%2F2012&report=0

Content Tools Data Center Site Management Security

Welcome, Greenwood | Hide QuickTips | Help | Logout

Live Site

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the
previous month. Statistics for the Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not
included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site while administering it
are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been
purged from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing
this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The
second report - Unique Visitors by Section - shows the total page views for each section
without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP addresses). For example, if
you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing
of that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only
lists sections that have had traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those
sections without traffic.

Begin Date 3/15/2012

End Date 4/15/2012

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 1054 38.38%

Agendas, Packets & Minutes 196 7.14%

Docks 96 3.5%

City Departments 87 3.17%

Assessments & Taxes 85 3.1%

Forms & Permits 81 2.95%

Welcome to Greenwood 76 2.77%

Planning Commission 75 2.73%

Crime Alert! 63 2.29%

Mayor & City Council 61 2.22%

Photo Gallery 55 2%

Budget & Finances 55 2%

RFPs & Bids 54 1.97%

Comprehensive Plan & Maps 49 1.78%

Code Book 48 1.75%

What's New? 43 1.57%

Spring Clean-Up Day 39 1.42%

Meetings 36 1.31%

Milfoil Project 35 1.27%

Lake Minnetonka 35 1.27%

Email List 34 1.24%

Elections 31 1.13%

Search Results 31 1.13%

Garbage & Recycling 30 1.09%

Events 30 1.09%

The reports offered in
your Site Statistics tool
only track activity on
the public side of your
site.

In each report, a section
named "Default" and a
section named "Home"
may appear.

A page view gets
attributed to "Default"
when a visitor to your
site types your URL into
his or her Web browser. 
In most cases, the
"Default" section is your
Home Page.

A page view gets
attributed to "Home"
each time a visitor clicks
the "Home" button on
your Web site.

In the Page View
(Default) report, only
sections with Web traffic
are reported and they
are listed in page view
order.

In the Page View by
Section report, sections
are listed in the order
they appear in the
navigation menu and
are reported regardless
of their traffic level.

In the Referrers report,
it is important to
remember that your
own site acts like a
referrer.  So, don't be
surprised if you see your
own Web address(es)
listed -- this tracks the
number of times people
went from one part of
your site to another.

Quick Tips

http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=3%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=4%2F15%2F2012&report=0
http://help.avenet.net/
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B81865F8A-E58F-4546-80DA-616E969899AF%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=3%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=4%2F15%2F2012&report=0#


4/15/12 7:32 PMwww.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com Admin

Page 2 of 3http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC…tistics&BeginDate=3%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=4%2F15%2F2012&report=0

Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Links 30 1.09%

Xcel Project 29 1.06%

Community Surveys 29 1.06%

Animal Services 27 0.98%

Meetings on TV 24 0.87%

Well Water 23 0.84%

Health & Safety 22 0.8%

Old Log Greenwood Night 22 0.8%

Emergency Preparedness 21 0.76%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 19 0.69%

Southshore Center 19 0.69%

Unsubscribe 2 0.07%

TOTAL 2746 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 411 27.88%

Agendas, Packets & Minutes 73 4.95%

City Departments 65 4.41%

Welcome to Greenwood 65 4.41%

Crime Alert! 56 3.8%

Forms & Permits 52 3.53%

Docks 51 3.46%

Mayor & City Council 44 2.99%

Photo Gallery 38 2.58%

Planning Commission 37 2.51%

Spring Clean-Up Day 32 2.17%

What's New? 32 2.17%

Comprehensive Plan & Maps 31 2.1%

Code Book 31 2.1%

Assessments & Taxes 30 2.04%

RFPs & Bids 29 1.97%

Lake Minnetonka 27 1.83%

Meetings 26 1.76%

Milfoil Project 26 1.76%

Garbage & Recycling 25 1.7%

Links 24 1.63%

Elections 22 1.49%

Animal Services 21 1.42%

Email List 21 1.42%

Meetings on TV 20 1.36%

Events 20 1.36%

Community Surveys 20 1.36%

Xcel Project 19 1.29%

Well Water 18 1.22%

Budget & Finances 18 1.22%

Old Log Greenwood Night 17 1.15%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 16 1.09%

Emergency Preparedness 15 1.02%

Southshore Center 14 0.95%

Health & Safety 14 0.95%

Search Results 13 0.88%

Unsubscribe 1 0.07%

TOTAL 1474 100%

http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEEFCEF1D-6773-4295-986F-BA6BDB3215AC%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7F9AEDE7-125C-44E5-9A1F-3C7A93195E8B%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE4E6E072-F7DA-4CB1-A638-8915989F8078%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA8FAE50E-D745-414D-8707-F9F9AAD99E95%7D&BeginDate=3/15/2012&EndDate=4/15/2012&report=1










  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: FYI 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: FYI Items in Council Packet 
  
Summary: The attached items are included in the council packet for your information (FYI) only. FYI items typically 
include planning commission minutes, ViBES (Violations Bureau Electronic System) report of traffic citations processed by 
Hennepin County District Court, monthly report of activity on the Greenwood website, and other items of interest to the 
council. 
  
Council Action: No council action is needed for FYI items. 



From: Debra Kind <dkind100@gmail.com>
Subject: June 2006 Historic Bridge Report and Meeting Recap

Date: April 11, 2012 8:53:17 AM CDT
To: Kristi Luger City of Excelsior <kluger@ci.excelsior.mn.us>, Nick Ruehl <nruehl@mchsi.com>
Cc: Gus Karpas <guskarpas@mchsi.com>, Bob Quam <Quamco@aol.com>, "Mark W. Kelly" 

<kellylawoffices@aim.com>, Morgan Dawley <MDawley@wsbeng.com>
3 Attachments, 3.8 MB

Nick & Kristi --

First, thank you so much for participating in last night's worksession. I think it was very helpful to get our councils up to 
speed on the bridge discussion. Bob Quam and I have reported back to our council regarding previous meetings that 
we have had, but based on last evening's discussion it is clear that hearing things first hand is important.

As promised, attached a pdf of the 136-page report from June 2006 regarding historic bridges. I got this report from 
our Bolton & Menk engineer when he first discovered that our bridge was included in the report. According to page 86 
of the pdf, our bridge is "eligible" to be historic because of "aesthetics." According to Morgan Dawley, there is nothing 
we can do to make our bridge "not eligible" and "eligible" bridges must go through the same process as bridges that 
are "listed" as historic. This does not mean that we must rehabilitate the bridge. It just means that we need to jump 
through a few hoops to prove it would be better to replace it than to rehabilitate it. According to Morgan and Barritt, the 
state's (Army Corps') hoops are much easier to jump through than the federal hoops. I think we all agree that for 
$200,000 in savings, it definitely is worth taking the temperature of the Army Corps to see if they would be open to the 
idea of replacing the bridge vs. rehabilitating the bridge. Also, according to Morgan, the amount of the project that 
would be covered is essentially the same whether we go with state or federal funding. Therefore, since it is much 
easier to work with the state, it definitely makes the most sense seek state funding for the project when the time 
comes. 

Next steps:

1. Mark Kelly drafts a mutual agreement that lays out key steps in the process, establishes WSB as the engineers 
for the project, includes a cost-sharing plan, etc.

2. Both cities review the mutual agreement and make revisions.
3. Both cities approve the mutual agreement.
4. Move forward with the first step in the agreement (one of the first steps likely will be for Morgan to meet with the 

Army Corps to take their temperature).

At this point, we need to have an agreement in place and an idea of which route to go (replace or rehab), so that we 
can pull the trigger when the time comes to seek funding to fix the bridge -- maybe next year, maybe 5 years from 
now, maybe longer. Time will tell.

For your reference, I also attached the WSB memos from 2008 and 2012. Note: the replacement cost estimate has 
increased by $225,000. Yikes!

I copied Morgan and others on this email so they can correct me if I am misstating or forgetting anything.

Again, thanks for a good meeting. Future councils will thank us for the preparation that has been done for this 
important project.

Debra J. Kind
Mayor, City of Greenwood
dkind100@gmail.com
www.greenwoodmn.com
H 952.401.9181
C 612.718.6753
Cell rolls to house

mailto:dkind100@gmail.com
http://www.greenwoodmn.com/


From: Morgan Dawley <MDawley@wsbeng.com>
Subject: RE: June 2006 Historic Bridge Report and Meeting Recap

Date: April 11, 2012 11:10:59 AM CDT
To: Debra Kind <dkind100@gmail.com>, Kristi Luger City of Excelsior <kluger@ci.excelsior.mn.us>, Nick 

Ruehl <nruehl@mchsi.com>
Cc: Gus Karpas <guskarpas@mchsi.com>, Bob Quam <Quamco@aol.com>, "Mark W. Kelly" 

<kellylawoffices@aim.com>, Barritt Lovelace <BLovelace@wsbeng.com>
1 Attachment, 6.2 KB

Mayor	  Kind,
	  
Thank	  you	  for	  the	  summary	  which	  I	  think	  captures	  many	  things	  discussed,	  and	  I	  hope	  last	  night’s	  discussion	  was	  helpful.
	  
I	  would	  add:

-‐          It	  was	  discussed	  that,	  before	  proceeding,	  it	  is	  important	  for	  Excelsior	  to	  understand	  exactly	  what	  is	  
historically	  significant	  about	  the	  bridge,	  and	  why	  it	  has	  been	  identified	  as	  historically	  significant.	  	  Kristi	  will	  
be	  looking	  into	  gathering	  this	  information	  in	  more	  detail	  for	  future	  update.

-‐          The	  Historic	  Bridge	  Report	  you	  have	  forwarded	  and	  the	  mention	  of	  the	  St.	  Alban’s	  Bay	  Bridge	  on	  page	  86	  is	  
the	  same	  as	  referenced	  during	  our	  discussion	  yesterday.	  	  There	  is	  additional	  information	  starting	  on	  page	  
50	  regarding	  potential	  funding	  options,	  as	  this	  was	  discussed	  as	  well.

-‐          WSB	  will	  prepare	  a	  brief	  work	  plan	  summary	  outlining	  a	  phased	  approach	  for	  Mark	  Kelly	  and	  consideration	  
of	  both	  Councils.

-‐          The	  2012	  cost	  estimate	  update	  was	  a	  more	  thorough	  effort	  than	  that	  prepared	  in	  2008	  and	  does	  reflect	  
current	  construction	  pricing	  for	  potential	  bridge	  improvements.	  	  Given	  the	  unknowns	  involved	  in	  agency	  
coordination	  and	  historical	  clearance	  at	  this	  early	  planning	  stage,	  I	  did	  feel	  that	  an	  increase	  indirect	  project	  
costs	  (for	  legal,	  engineering,	  administration,	  and	  financing)	  from	  20%	  to	  30%	  was	  appropriately
conservative,	  which	  also	  contributed	  to	  the	  overall	  increase	  in	  estimated	  total	  project	  cost.

	  
It	  was	  a	  pleasure	  meeting	  you,	  Gus,	  and	  the	  rest	  of	  your	  Council	  last	  night!
	  
Morgan
	  
	  

Morgan Dawley, PE
Municipal Project Manager
d: 763-287-7173 | c: 612-670-3132
WSB & Associates, Inc. | 701 Xenia Avenue South, Suite 300 |  Minneapolis, MN 55416

This email, and any files transmitted with it, is confidential and is intended solely for the use of the addressee. If you are not 
the addressee, please delete this email from your system. Any use of this email by unintended recipients is strictly prohibited. 
WSB & Associates, Inc. does not accept liability for any errors or omissions which arise as a result of electronic transmission. 
If verification is required, please request a hard copy.

From: Debra Kind [mailto:dkind100@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2012 8:53 AM
To: Kristi Luger City of Excelsior; Nick Ruehl

http://www.wsbeng.com/


  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: April 21, 2012 
 
To:  Senator Dave Senjem 

Senator John Pederson 
Senator Gen Olson 
Representative Larry Howes 
Representative Jenifer Loon 
Representative Connie Doepke 

 
State Office Building 
100 Rev Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
St. Paul, MN 55155 

 
Re:  Support for Metro Cities’ $8 million bonding request for inflow and infiltration mitigation for local  

public sewer infrastructure. Senate Bill SF1862, House Bill HF2286. 
 
On behalf of the Greenwood city council, I am writing to let you know we support the bonding request 
for inflow and infiltration (I&I) mitigation. Our city benefited from matching grant money for our 2011 
inflow and infiltration projects. But we still have more work that needs to be done on our aging sewer 
system.  
 
As you know, the cost to fix flow problems at the local source is estimated to cost $150 million, 
compared with nearly one billion dollars that would be needed for the Met Council to add collection and 
treatment capacity to handle excessive flow. Anything the state can do to encourage local governments 
to complete I&I projects benefits us all. Your efforts in support of Senate Bill SF1862, House Bill 
HF2286 are much appreciated.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Debra J. Kind 
Mayor, City of Greenwood 
 
 


	05-02-12 Council Packet
	05-02-12 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	04-04-12 Assessor Worksession Minutes
	04-04-12 GW CC Reg Meeting Minutes R1
	04-10-12 Joint Worksession Minutes R1 clean
	04-12-12 Board of Appeals Minutes R1
	04-12-12 Special Meeting City Dock Extension R2
	April Payables Check Register
	April Payables for Council Approval
	March Cash Summary
	MAY PAYROLL CHECK REGISTER
	Ord 209 Diseased Trees
	Public Access Procedures
	SLMPD Memo Excelsior 04-19-2012
	SLMPD Proposal - 2012 Excelsior Park & Dock Patrol Services
	- MEMO Streets on Private Property
	Curve Street Alignment
	- MEMO 2012 Road Projects
	03-12-12 Map Conditions
	03-14-12 Map Project Years
	2012 Street Improvements
	- MEMO Police
	- MEMO Excelsior Blvd. Water
	- MEMO Carlson Variance
	Carlson - Variance 20965 Channel Drive- May 2012
	Carlson Application - Lakeside Variances
	Carlson Site Plan and Elevations - Lakeside Variances
	- MEMO Xcel Alternate Route
	02-23-12 Xcel Letter Med-Res
	Scan
	Scan 1
	Scan 2
	Scan 3
	Scan 4

	03-26-12 Burdick Letters
	Scan
	Scan 2
	Scan 3

	- MEMO Hardcover and Setbacks on Small Lots
	04-20-12 Keith RE- Setback and hardcover requirements
	Jan1206 Cohen Variance
	Setback and hardcover requirements
	- MEMO Shore Clean-Up
	04-09-12 Bob Quinn Shore Clean-Up
	MN 462.358 Excerpt Park Funds
	462.358 Subdivision Regulation, Park Funds, Nexus

	- MEMO Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer
	Chapter 3 Sump Pumps R3
	Ord 209 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer R3
	2012 Sewer Certifiction Letter R2
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	04-15-12 Web Hits Summary.xls
	04-15-12 Web Report
	04-16-12 Dock Extension Application
	- MEMO FYI no date
	04-11-12 DK Meeting Recap
	04-11-12 E from Morgan
	04-21-12 I&I Grant Support Letter

	- MEMO Shore Clean-Up
	05-02-12 Council Packet
	05-02-12 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	04-04-12 Assessor Worksession Minutes
	04-04-12 GW CC Reg Meeting Minutes R1
	04-10-12 Joint Worksession Minutes R1 clean
	04-12-12 Board of Appeals Minutes R1
	04-12-12 Special Meeting City Dock Extension R2
	April Payables Check Register
	April Payables for Council Approval
	March Cash Summary
	MAY PAYROLL CHECK REGISTER
	Ord 209 Diseased Trees
	Public Access Procedures
	SLMPD Memo Excelsior 04-19-2012
	SLMPD Proposal - 2012 Excelsior Park & Dock Patrol Services
	- MEMO Streets on Private Property
	Curve Street Alignment
	- MEMO 2012 Road Projects
	03-12-12 Map Conditions
	03-14-12 Map Project Years
	2012 Street Improvements
	- MEMO Police
	- MEMO Excelsior Blvd. Water
	- MEMO Carlson Variance
	Carlson - Variance 20965 Channel Drive- May 2012
	Carlson Application - Lakeside Variances
	Carlson Site Plan and Elevations - Lakeside Variances
	- MEMO Xcel Alternate Route
	02-23-12 Xcel Letter Med-Res
	Scan
	Scan 1
	Scan 2
	Scan 3
	Scan 4

	03-26-12 Burdick Letters
	Scan
	Scan 2
	Scan 3

	- MEMO Hardcover and Setbacks on Small Lots
	04-20-12 Keith RE- Setback and hardcover requirements
	Jan1206 Cohen Variance
	Setback and hardcover requirements
	- MEMO Shore Clean-Up
	04-09-12 Bob Quinn Shore Clean-Up
	MN 462.358 Excerpt Park Funds
	462.358 Subdivision Regulation, Park Funds, Nexus

	- MEMO Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer
	Chapter 3 Sump Pumps R3
	Ord 209 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer R3
	2012 Sewer Certifiction Letter R2
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	04-15-12 Web Hits Summary.xls
	04-15-12 Web Report
	04-16-12 Dock Extension Application
	- MEMO FYI no date
	04-11-12 DK Meeting Recap
	04-11-12 E from Morgan
	04-21-12 I&I Grant Support Letter




